
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, July 1, 2024  
Immediately Following the 

Bartlesville Municipal Authority 
Beginning at 5:30 p.m. 

Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr.
918-338-4282

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

AGENDA 

1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr.

2. Roll call and establishment of a quorum.

3. Citizens to be heard.

4. City Council Announcements and Proclamations.
• Recognition and presentation of awards to the graduates of the Citizens Academy 2024 Class I.

5. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings
• One opening on the Ambulance Commission
• One opening on the Adams Municipal Golf Course Oversight Committee
• One opening on the City Planning Commission
• One opening on the Bartlesville Water Resources Committee (Ward 4 Representative)

6. Consent Docket
a. Approval of Minutes

i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of June 3, 2024.

b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, and
Committees.
i. Appointment of Ms. Caroline Casselberry to a three-year term on the Community Center

Trust Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland.
ii. Ratify reappointment of Chase Allcott to the Bartlesville Development Authority Board of

Trustees for a second three-year term at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland.

c. Approval of Ordinance
i. Amend Ordinance and Joinder Agreement on the Assistant City Manager Customized

Manager Option (CMO) Plan through the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund.

d. Approval of Resolutions
i. Resolution directing filing and notification of the publication of the 2024 printed supplement

#31 to the City of Bartlesville Municipal Code.

e. Approval and/or Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change
Orders, Addendums, Employment Agreements and Memorandums of Understanding.
i. Service Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Police Department and Tri

County Technology Center to provide a satellite office/substation and training classroom on
the east side of the City of Bartlesville, including the Police Department providing one
resource office on location for Tri County Technology Center.



 
 
 

  ii.    Lease Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Police Department and Tri 
County Technology Center to provide a satellite office/substation and training classroom on 
the east side of the City of Bartlesville. 

  iii. Service Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Police Department and 
Axon Enterprise, Inc. to provide an upgrade to Police Department’s current body camera 
system.  

  iv. Janitorial Contracts between the City of Bartlesville and Simply Green Clean LLC for 
janitorial services for City Hall and the Public Library. 

  v. Short Form Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Canady Construction to construct 
a new roof on the Adams Golf Course Pro Shop.  

  vi. Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Brightly Software, Inc. for purchase and 
implementation of Asset Management Software. 

  vii. Amendment #1 to the Professional service Contract between the City of Bartlesville and 
Murray GeoConsulting LLC for monitoring and reporting of constituents of emerging 
concern (CEC) for the Wastewater Treatment Plant indirect potable reuse pilot plant study. 

  viii. Contract between the City of Bartlesville and B-Town Construction to install flow meters at 
the Hillcrest and Nebraska lift stations. 

  ix. Airport Hangar Lease Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Municipal 
Airport and Wings of Change Ministries. 

  x. Amendment to the Professional Service Contract with Guy Engineering Services, Inc. for 
design services on the Tuxedo Boulevard Bridges over the Caney River and Overflow/Pond 
Rehabilitation and Repair Project. 

  xi. Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Bartlesville and Fraternal Order of 
Police, Lodge 117, for FY 2023-25,  to change stipend payments to an hourly rate instead 
of monthly rates. 

  xii. Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Bartlesville and the Fraternal Order of 
Police, Lodge 117, for FY 2023-2025, adding the City’s Employee Performance and 
Recognition Program in to the collective bargaining agreement, effective July 1 of each 
year as incorporated as part of the agreement. 

  xiii. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Wilson Psychological Associates, PLLC, to 
provide biannual “Wellness Visits” for police officers, E911 dispatchers, and peer support 
team members of the Bartlesville Police Department. 

xiv. Employment Agreement between Jason Dochney and the City of Bartlesville to provide 
interim leadership at Adams Municipal Golf Course.  

xv. Request approval for video depiction displaying all likenesses, images, property, and 
official personnel, from both the Bartlesville Police Department and the Bartlesville Fire 
Department for the purpose of honoring first responders in a musical video to the song, 
“Those Who Fight” by local artist Aaron Ray Vaughan. 

 
 f. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – June 2024. 
 
 g. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for eleven months ending May, 2024. 
 
 h.  Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2024-2025-001 for Water & Wastewater Line Repair Materials 
  ii. Bid No. 2024-2025-002 for Water Treatment Chemicals  
    

7. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-001 for Water & Wastewater Line 
Repair Materials. Presented by Councilman Loren Roszel. 
 

8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-002 for Water Treatment 
Chemicals. Presented by Councilman Loren Roszel. 

 
9. Discuss and take possible action to approve a Resolution calling and giving notice of an 

upcoming election for City Council Representatives for all wards of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma. Presented by Jess Kane, City Attorney. 



 
 
 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action to approve an Agreement for Services between JJ Keegan 

and the City of Bartlesville on conducting a comprehensive strategic review of the Adams 
Municipal Golf Course management model. Presented by Vice Mayor Jim Curd.  

 
11. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance permitting the use of golf carts on 

City streets. Presented by Councilman Loren Roszel.  
 

12. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance to change the name of the east/west 
segment of Oak Park Road to Roane Road within the Oak Wood Addition. Presented by Larry 
R. Curtis, Director of Community Development. 

 
13. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance amending Appendix D-General 

Schedule of Fees, which establishes the fees and costs charged by the City of Bartlesville; 
authorizing periodic adjustment and the waiver of fees by the City Manager. Presented by 
Larry R. Curtis, Director of Community Development. 

 
14. Discuss and take possible action to approve an Addendum to the Disposition and 

Development Agreement between the City of Bartlesville, Buffalo Roam, and Bartlesville 
Redevelopment Trust Authority. Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager. 

 
15. Discuss and take possible action to approve Amendment #1 to the Disposition and 

Development Agreement between the City of Bartlesville, Buffalo Roam, and Bartlesville 
Redevelopment Trust Authority. Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager. 

 
16. Discuss and take possible action to fill the City Council liaison positions for Authorities, 

Boards, Commissions and Committees vacated by the passing of Ward 4 City Councilor Billie 
Roane. Presented by Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr. 

 
17. New Business. 

  
18. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
19. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 
20. Adjournment. 

 
The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent public 
view at City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, June 27, 2024. 
 
Jason Muninger    /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO    by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Sparklight: Channel 56 
  

 Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official 
action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, 
strike, or continue any agenda item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City 
Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a 
specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City 
Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. If 
participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled 
meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation. 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


4.







 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Monday, June 3, 2024  
 5:30 p.m. 

 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

918-338-4282 
 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2023 and the Agenda was posted May 30, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
City Council present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Councilmembers 
Trevor Dorsey, and Loren Roszel.  

 
 City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason Muninger, 

CFO/City Clerk; Laura Sanders, Assistant City Manager; Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water 
Utilities; Micah Siemers, Director of Engineering; Shellie McGill, Director of the Library and 
Museum; Kelli Williams, Chief Communications Officer; Larry Curtis, Director of Community 
Development; Alicia Shelton, Accountant; Kelsey Walker, Communications and Marketing 
Manager; Steve Roper, Engineering; Robin Betts, Interim H.R. Director; Police Chief Kevin 
Ickleberry; Deputy Police Chief Troy Newell; Captain Andrew Ward; Fire Chief H.C. Call; and 
Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Mayor 

Copeland at 5:38 p.m.  
 

2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. The Invocation was provided by Dr. Larry Cowan, Integrated Team Manager, Grand Mental 
Health. Following the invocation, Mayor Copeland expressed his appreciation to Dr. Cowan for the 
good work that he and his organization provides to the community. 

 
4. Citizens to be heard. 

 
Ed Sheets spoke against allowing golf carts on City streets. 
 
John Hensley spoke about adding public comment before each agenda item. He also inquired as the 
status of the Amended Charter. 

 
5. Discuss and take possible action to fill the City Council position for Ward 4 in the City of 

Bartlesville, and to possibly administer the Oath of Office to appointee. Presented by Mayor 
Copeland. 

 
Mayor Copeland reported that due to the sad loss of Ms. Roane, her position on the City Council 
became open. The City received seven applications followed by interviews with the remaining four 
Councilmembers, two by two. Tonight a decision can be made from the seven qualified candidates. 
Mr. Roszel stated his appreciation to everyone who applied and how he missed his friend, Ms. 
Roane. Vice Mayor Curd stated his appreciation to Ms. Roane for her commitment to the City, and his 
appreciation for each of the candidates, as well as the City staff for setting up and scheduling the 

Agenda Item 6.a.i.



 
 
 

interviews. Mr. Dorsey stated that the applicants were really good and his hopes that those not 
chosen will apply to serve on any of the City’s Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees. 
Mr. Roszel concurred.  
 
Mr. Roszel moved to appoint Mr. Quinn Schipper to the City Council position for Ward 4, seconded by 
Vice Mayor Curd. 
 
Mr. Roszel added that he felt Mr. Schipper is engaged in the community and is well-prepared to serve 
in this position. Mayor Copeland concurred. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 
Jess Kane, City Attorney, administered the Oath of Office to Mr. Schipper who then took his 
seat with the City Council. 

 
6. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

• Purple Heart City Proclamation was presented by Vice Mayor Curd.  
 

7. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  
• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 

 
Mayor Copeland read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City 
Committees. Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the city 
Manager’s Office. 

 
8. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of May 6, 2024. 

 
b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Melanie Bayles to fill an unexpired position on the Bartlesville Area 

History Museum Trust Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
ii. Appointment of Ms. Laura Jensen to a three-year term on the Keep Bartlesville Beautiful 

Committee at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
iii. Reappointment of Ms. Jana Tresher to an additional three year term on the Street and 

Traffic Committee at the recommendation of Councilmember Roszel. 
iv. Ratify appointment of Ms. Tara Gotwalt for a three-year term as Trustee for the Bartlesville 

Development Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
v. Ratify the election of Ms. Gayle Lester as Chair and Ms. Jamie Bennett as 

Secretary/Treasurer of the Bartlesville Development Authority for FY 2024-2025. 
 

c. Approval of Ordinances 
i. Ordinances and Joinder Agreements to implement Customized Manager Option (CMO) 

Plans through the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OKMRF). 
 
 d. Approval of Resolutions 
  i. Amending the contracts of the City Judge and Golf Professional adjusting their 

compensation to accommodate the approved cost of living adjustments and merit increases 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

  ii. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, 
appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Golf Course Memorial Fund. 

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 
  iii.   Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 appropriating 

grant funds from the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics (ODAA) for the 
Bartlesville Municipal Airport. 

     
 e. Approval and/or Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change 

Orders, Memorandums of Understanding, Fee Schedules, and Mayoral Proclamations 
and Letter. 

  i. Professional E-Rate Management Services – Fee Schedule between the City of 
Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library and Kellogg and Sovereign Consulting for completion 
and submission of all forms for E-Rate funding. 

  ii. Business Associate Agreement between the City of Bartlesville Group Benefit Plan and 
HCC Life Insurance Company to switch stop loss carriers from Optum to HCC Life 
Insurance Company. 

  iii.    Airport Hangar Lease Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Municipal 
Airport and BMI Aviation to store one Socata TB21 aircraft in Hangar 8. 

iv. Airport Hangar Lease Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Municipal 
Airport and Phoenix Rising Aviation, Inc. to lease South Hangar 1. 

v. Location Facilities Agreement (non-filmed location) between Sarah’s Oil, LLC and the City 
of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Municipal Airport for Hangar 2 for personnel, vehicles and 
equipment.  

vi. Amended Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Washington County SPCA. 
vii. Short Form Construction Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Haynes Equipment 

Company to install a replacement filter aide chemical feed system at the Water Treatment 
Plant. 

viii. Professional Service Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Keleher Architects for 
Architectural and Engineering Design of two equipment sheds located in the City’s 
operation yard. 

ix. Professional Services Agreement Amendment No. 3 between the City of Bartlesville and 
Tetra Tech, Inc. for engineering services for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 
and the Limestone to Chickasaw Transport Corridor Improvements. 

x. Operation and Maintenance Contract Amendment No. 4 between the City of Bartlesville 
and Veolia Water for the Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

xi. Design Contract between the City of Bartlesville and CEC Corporation for engineering 
design for reconstruction of Yale Drive between Adams Boulevard and Frank Phillips 
Boulevard. 

xii. Agreement with CivicPlus for codification and ordinance bank subscription, and 
supplementation services. 

xiii. First Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and 
Jess M. Kane for his services as City Attorney. 

xiv.  Employment Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Rocky R. Bevard to provide 
intensive background investigations on potential employees for the Bartlesville Police 
Department, a department of the City of Bartlesville, an Oklahoma municipal corporation 
and a charter city organized and existing pursuant to the Oklahoma State Constitution. 

xv.  A Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Bartlesville and Bartlesville 
Professional Firefighters, Local 200, International Association of Firefighters,  to provide 
paid administrative leave to Johnny Kelley, Bartlesville Fire Fighter and Barnsdall Mayor, so 
that he may provide full time assistance to Barnsdall to assist in its recovery effort from the 
May 6, 2024 tornado. 

xvi.  A Memorandum of Understanding updating Appendix 1 of the Fraternal Order of Police 
(FOP) Collective Bargaining Agreement for Fiscal Year 2023-2025 providing for a 6% cost 
of living increase. 

xvii. A Memorandum of Understanding updating Article 15 of the Fraternal Order of Police 
(FOP) Collective Bargaining Agreement for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 regarding payout of 
monthly stipends. 

xviii. Ratification of a Disaster Emergency Proclamation that was authorized and signed by 
Mayor Copeland at the request of Kary Cox, Director, Washington County Emergency 
Management on May 9, 2024 regarding the May 6, 2024 tornado event. 



 
 
 

xix. Ratification of a Detailed Rebuttal to Presumption of Minimal Adverse Impacts on Proposed 
Acquisition into Trust for Cherokee Nation Memo authorized and signed by Mayor 
Copeland on May 21, 2024. 

 
 f. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – May 2024.  
 
 g. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for ten months ending April, 2024. 
 
 h.  Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2023-2024-016 for the Pathfinder Improvements Projects 2024. 
 

 Mayor Copeland read the consent docket in its entirety. Mr. Roszel removed Items 8.e.xii and 
8.e.xiv. for further discussion. Vice Mayor Curd removed Item 8.d.iii.for further discussion. 

 
  Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the consent docket except for Items 8.d.iii., 8.e.xii. and 

8.e.xiv., seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 

Voting Aye: Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd,  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
 Item 8.d.iii.Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

appropriating grant funds from the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and 
Aeronautics (ODAA) for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport. 

 
    At Vice Mayor Curd’s request, Mr. Siemers reported that this is a cost sharing 

agreement for the taxiway extension project. The  largest share of funding is from 
the ODAA, along with funding from the FAA, NPE/AIP, and the AIG/ARPA funds  
The FAA funding to be combined with the other funding is about $700,000. The 
City’s funding for the $2.4 million project is only $100,000 due to the funds 
committed by the other agencies. This extension will open up additional property 
at the airport, facilitating the potential for new hangars. Construction on the 
taxiway extension should start early Fall. The project has been awarded, and this 
action appropriates the funds for disbursement. Vice Mayor Curd appreciated the 
Engineering Department, the BDA in looking to develop business at the airport, 
and the airport management for the improvements and enhancements. 

 
 Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve Item 8.d.iii. as presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 

Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
 Item 8.e.xii.Agreement with CivicPlus for codification and ordinance bank subscription, and 

supplementation services. 
 
   At Mr. Roszel’s request, Mr. Muninger explained that the City has a current 

contract with Civic Plus who is going to subscription services vs a per item 
service as in the past. It is not the only vendor available, but they are the City’s 
current vendor and one of the biggest and best. By moving to a subscription 
service, the City will incur a savings and their service has been satisfactory for 
many years. Mr. Bailey explained what they provide contractually. Mr. Muninger 



 
 
 

also added what they provide in addition to what Mr. Bailey explained, and he 
added that finding vendors that could meet their level of service and expense 
may be hard to find. The Mayor explained that Civic Plus ensures that the 
Municipal Code can be found online to City ordinances and is always up-to-date. 

 
 Mr. Roszel moved to approve Item 8.e.xii. as presented, seconded by Mr. Schipper. 
 

Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
 Item 8.e.xiv. Employment Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Rocky R. Bevard to 

provide intensive background investigations on potential employees for the 
Bartlesville Police Department, a department of the City of Bartlesville, an 
Oklahoma municipal corporation and a charter city organized and existing 
pursuant to the Oklahoma State Constitution. 

 
 Mr. Roszel prefaced his comments by saying he has known former Deputy Police Chief 

Bevard and his questions about this item are not about Mr. Bevard’s integrity. He wanted 
more information on how and why this is needed, and if a former officer is better than an 
objective, outside party to conduct the background search. Mr. Bailey explained that a basic 
background check can be conducted relatively easily on City employees, but conducting 
background searches on potential police officers is much more extensive. Captain Newell 
explained that background searches can take quite a while for a thorough search thereby 
pulling administrative or other officers away from their daily duties. He added that this 
position has been discussed and researched as it would be beneficial to the department to 
have one person designated to do this job. Mr. Roszel asked what the advantage is to have 
someone close to and even from the department hired for the job instead of an outside 
person who may be more objective. Mr. Bailey explained that the job covers entry level police 
officers, therefore he is comfortable with Mr. Bevard for this type of background search. He 
added that if the background search was for a Police Chief, the investigation would be from 
outside entities due to perception of objectivity and the element of having to work together 
once hired. Mr. Roszel stated that he has nothing again Mr. Bevard conducting the job, just 
wanted to ensure he and the potential employee are protected in the process. Mayor 
Copeland concurred adding that with Mr. Bevard’s experience as a police officer and Deputy 
Chief will be conducive to him providing thorough background checks. 

 
 Mr. Roszel moved to approve Item 8.e.xiv. as presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 

Voting Aye:   Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:   
Motion:  Pass/Fail 

  
9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-016 for the Pathfinder 

Improvements 2024 Project. Presented by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to award Bid No. 2023-2024-016 to KSL Dirtworks, LLC in the 
amount of $879,220.91 as presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 



 
 
 

10. Public hearing and possible action on a request by Chris Hester to close a portion of 
the Interurban Street right-of-way located adjacent to Lot 1, Block 1, Highland Park, 2nd 
Addition, (225 NE Howard Avenue) Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. 
Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., Director of Engineering.  

 
Mr. Siemers reported the applicant is requesting the closure so that they can utilize an 
existing footing for construction of a residential building on the property. Currently, the footing 
encroaches upon the Interurban Drive right-of-way. This would also help account for some 
building setback from the property line if approved.  This is a very wide right-of-way that was 
originally used for the Interurban Railroad. Interurban Drive is located in the north half of the 
right-of-way, leaving a wide strip on the south side where this property is located. Staff has 
received no objection from City Departments, ONG, AT&T or Sparklight. However, PSO has 
stated that they cannot concur with the request. They have existing overhead electric lines 
and believe it in their best interest to keep the full right-of-way to be able to access and 
maintain the lines safely. Therefore, staff recommends holding the public hearing and denial 
of the request to vacate any portion of the Interurban Drive right-of-way based upon input 
from PSO. 
 
In response to Mr. Dorsey’s question about a structure on the easement, Mr. Siemers 
responded there is not an existing structure on the old footing. Mr. Hester wanted to use the 
existing footing for a structure which is the reason for his request, but he has still has room to 
develop what he needs with using the encroached footing. 
 
Mayor Copeland opened the public hearing at 6:40 p.m. There being no one appear to 
speak, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 6:40 p.m. 
 
A brief discussion ensued about taking no action or is action required; the option for the 
landowner to move the electrical issues that caused PSO to deny their approval; what was 
built on the remaining footing; and that denying the request to vacate does not prohibit Mr. 
Hester from building what is needed on his property. 
 

 Mr. Roszel moved to deny the request to vacate any portion of the Interurban Drive right-of-
way based upon input from PSO and at staff recommendation as presented, seconded by 
Mr. Schipper. 

 
Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
11. Discuss and take possible action on a recommendation from the Bartlesville Development 

Authority for extension of the Resident Recruitment Program incentive. Presented by Chris 
Batchelder, Vice President, Business Development, Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 
Mr. Batchelder opened by welcoming Mr. Schipper to the City Council and thanked him for 
his service. He also thanked the Council for the ratification of their members in previous 
actions at this meeting. He reported that since Resident Recruitment Program’s inception, it 
has been a fantastically successful program. Several years ago, at the behest of 
ConocoPhillips, the program was developed to encourage employees to live where they are 
employed. To-date, 64 new residents have taken advantage of this program, six of which 
from international locations. The total amount disbursed so far is $422,500 with four new 
residents who started as renter have converted to ownership.  
 



 
 
 

Discussion covered that incentivizing businesses to come to Bartlesville is how it started, and 
incentivizing employees to live here has been a successful as well; this program as well as 
the City continuing to improve and provide enhancements made to the community hopefully 
makes the decision easier for employees choose to live here; a primary industry is any 
company located in Bartlesville who’s revenue is more than 50% derived from outside the 
community; and that companies such as Blue Whale and Lincoln Electrical are using this 
incentive as part of their employee recruitment. Continued discussion covered the need for 
additional housing, and how the City’s Strategic Plan is addressing the housing need. Mayor 
Copeland inquired if the proposed extension has an end date. Mr. Batchelder said the 
extension would be open ended within the constraints of the Economic Development Fund. 
Mr. Roszel confirmed that the City Council would have to end the program by Council action, 
since there will not be a sunset date. Mr. Bailey stated that this is how current BDA programs 
are set-up. 
 

 Mr. Dorsey moved to extend the Resident Recruitment Program Incentive with no end-date 
as presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
12. New Business. 

 
There was no new business to report. 

 
13. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
Mr. Bailey reported on: 
 
The Civitan Park shade structure is now in place. Between contractors and weather, it was a long 
process, but it is now stronger with repairs made to the original structure. Vice Mayor Curd stated his 
appreciation to City staff for a job well done. Mr. Siemers came forward to give credit to the Public 
Works Department who did a fantastic job on the structure.  
 
Curbside debris collection from the tornado event continues. There are still closures on the Pathfinder 
due to downed trees. The site west of town for tree debris is still open. Assistance has been offered to 
Barnsdall as well which directly related to an earlier action this evening allowing the Barnsdall Mayor, 
who is also a Bartlesville firefighter, approved leave to assist his community. 
 
Endeavor 2025 Comprehensive Plan meetings will be held June 18 and 19, two sessions from 5 to 7 
one at Ability Works and the second one at East Cross Church. Public input is invited and welcome.  
 
The Library will be closed June 7 and 8 for installation of new sky lights. 
 
H.C. Call was introduced to the City Council as the new Bartlesville Fire Chief. They all welcomed 
him. 
 
Mr. Bailey concluded by thanking Mr. Schipper for agreeing to serve and to all of the other 
candidates. He added that he sat in on the interviews and was heartened by the quality of candidates 
and their interest in serving the community. 
 

14. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Mr. Schipper spoke about how he had set in this chair alongside Ms. Roane in the City Planning 
Committee, as well as on two additional committees, and feels the loss of her absence, friendship, 
and mentorship. He added that he looks forward to representing Ward 4.  



Mr. Loren encourage the City Council applicants again to serve on one of the many City committees. 

Mayor Copeland stated his appreciation of everyone who assisted in the clean up of the tornado 
event on May 6. It was heartening to see our citizens and those outside of the community pitch in and 
do the work necessary to help their neighbors. 

Mayor Copeland also encouraged everyone to vote on June 18, as well as in all of the elections. It is 
an honor and privilege to be able to do so. 

The Mayor also congratulated Mr. Schipper on his appointment and looks forward to working with 
him. 

Vice Mayor Curd congratulated Mayor Copeland on receiving the Tom Shoemake Award recently and 
on his 13 years of service on the City Council. He added that serving under him has been an honor 
and that he is well deserving of this leadership award. Mayor Copeland thanked Vice Mayor Curd. 

15. There being no further business to address, Mayor Copeland adjourned the meeting at 7:08
p.m.

Dale W. Copeland, Mayor

by _____________________
Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr. 

Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



6.b.i.





6.c.i.



















6.d.i.







































































































































6.e.i.







6.e.ii.













6.e.iii.







































































































6.e.iv.



JANITORIAL CONTRACT 

This contract for Janitorial Services is made effective on or before August 8th, 2024, by and between 

the City of Bartlesville (City Hall) of 401 S. Johnstone Ave., Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003 and Simply 

Green Clean LLC of 822 SW Jennings, Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003. 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. Beginning on or before August 8th, 2024 Simply Green Clean LLC will 

provide to the City Hall janitorial services described in the attached Exhibit (collectively, the "Services"). 

All services included in this Contract will be completed at 401 S. Johnstone Ave., Bartlesville OK 74003. 

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES. Simply Green Clean LLC shall furnish all materials and equipment necessary 

to perform the Services described in this Contract with the exception of hand soap, towels, toilet tissue, 

and any other consumables which are to be supplied by City Hall, who shall maintain an adequate supply 

of these supplies in the janitorial room of the building. 

SUPERVISION. Periodic inspections shall be conducted by the Building Maintenance Supervisor and staff 

to ensure that all Services are properly performed. To make certain that any problems that may arise 

will be promptly resolved, The Building Maintenance Supervisor will promptly relay any complaints to 

Simply Green Clean LLC by phone number 918-860-1812 or email simplygreencleans@yahoo.com. 

PAYMENT. Payment shall be made by the City of Bartlesville to the Contractor once per month within 30 

days after an invoice is received. The invoices will be due on the first day of each month. During a 

month where services are completed for part of the month, the monthly fee shall be prorated based on 

the number of days services were performed during the month. Example; {If 20 cleaning days were 

possible during the month service would be prorated at $125 per day for each day cleaning occurred 

($2500/25). The monthly fee for a full month of service is $2,500. 

TERM. This Contract may be terminated by either party upon 30 days' prior written notice to the other 

party. 

INSURANCE. The Contractor is responsible for providing workers' compensation insurance for their 

employees. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract contains the entire agreement of the parties, and there are no other 

promises or conditions in any other agreement whether oral or written concerning the subject matter of 

the Contract. This Contract supersedes any prior written or oral agreements between the parties. 

SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract will be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any 

reason, the remaining provisions will continue to be valid and enforceable. 

AMENDMENT. This Contract may be modified or amended in writing, if the writing is signed by the party 

obligated under the amendment. 

City of Bartlesville 

Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor Date 

Simply Green Clean LLC _______________ _ 

Morgan Shea Dawn Schwarzkopf Date 



JANITORIAL CONTRACT 

This contract for Janitorial Services is made effective on or before August 8th, 2024, by and between 

the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library. ("Library") of 401 S. Johnstone Ave., Bartlesville, 

Oklahoma 74003 and Simply Green Clean LLC of 822 SW Jennings Ave, Apt B, Bartlesville, Oklahoma 

74003. 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. Beginning on or before August 8th, 2024 Simply Green Clean LLC will 

provide to the Library janitorial services described in the attached Exhibit (collectively, the "Services"). 

All services included in this Contract will be completed at 600 S. Johnstone Ave., Bartlesville OK 74003. 

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES. Simply Green Clean LLC shall furnish all materials and equipment necessary 

to perform the Services described in this Contract with the exception of hand soap, towels, toilet tissue, 

and any other consumables which are to be supplied by the Library, who shall maintain an adequate 

supply of these supplies in the janitorial room of the building. 

SUPERVISION. Periodic inspections shall be conducted by the Building Maintenance Supervisor and staff 

to ensure that all Services are properly performed. To make certain that any problems that may arise 

will be promptly resolved, Library will promptly relay any complaints to Simply Green Clean LLC by 

phone number 918-860-1812 or email simplygreencleans@yahoo.com. 

PAYMENT.
, 
Payment shall be made by the City of Bartlesville to the Contractor once per month within 30 

days after an invoice is received. The invoices will be due on the first day of each month. During a 

month where services are completed for part of the month, the monthly fee shall be prorated based on 

the number of days services were performed during the month. Example; (If 20 cleaning days were 

possible during the month service would be prorated at $125 per day for each day cleaning occurred. 

($2500/20). The monthly fee for a full month of service is $2,500. 

TERM. This Contract may be terminated by either party upon 30 days' prior written notice to the other 

party. 

INSURANCE. The Contractor is responsible for providing workers' compensation insurance for their 

employees. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract contains the entire agreement of the parties, and there are no other 

promises or conditions in any other agreement whether oral or written concerning the subject matter of 

the Contract. This Contract supersedes any prior written or oral agreements between the parties. 

SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract will be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any 

reason, the remaining provisions will continue to be valid and enforceable. 

AMENDMENT. This Contract may be modified or amended in writing, if the writing is signed by the party 

obligated under the amendment. 

City of Bartlesville 

Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor Date 

Simply Green Clean LLC ______________ _ 
Morgan Shea Dawn Schwarzkopf Date 



Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approve short form contract with Canady Construction to construct a new roof on the Adams 
Golf Course Pro Shop. 
 
Attachments: 

Short Form Contract and Contractor Quotes 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
One of the voter-approved discretionary projects included in the 2020 ½ Cent Sales Tax 
Extension was to provide funding to replace the roof on the north end of the Adams Golf Course 
Pro Shop.  The majority of the flat roofs on the Pro Shop had been replaced with steel hip and 
gable roof systems.  Approximately the north 1/3 of the Pro Shop roof remains as a flat roof and 
is due for replacement.  City staff have reached out to multiple contractors for quotes to construct 
a roof system similar to what has been installed on the rest of the building.  Two contractors were 
non-responsive and quotes were received from two other contractors.  Conley Construction and 
Canady Construction both provided quotes for a standard steel hip roof system.  Canady 
Construction also provided a quote to extend a covered patio area on the east side of the building 
in addition to the roof over the building.  The quotes are as follows: 
 
 Conley Construction – Hip Roof   $78,900.00 
 Canady Construction – Hip Roof   $32,460.00 
 Canady Construction – Hip Roof with Patio  $47,820.00 
 
There were some delays in coordinating the contract with Canady Construction.  Enough time 
had lapsed that staff thought it was fair to let Canady update their material costs if necessary.  
The price of lumber and metal roof material has gone up somewhat since the time of the original 
quote, but their price is still substantially lower than the other quote from Conley Construction. 
The change in material costs will add $3,251.00 to the original quote for the porch option for a 
total price of $51,071.00.  The quote and contract are set up so that this is a maximum price and 
final cost could go down based upon actual costs.  The City of Bartlesville contracted with 
Canady Construction to replace the roof on the Adams Golf Course maintenance building in 2020 
with good results.  While the option without the patio was closer to the original budget, staff 
believe the extra money for the patio would be the best option for the golf course to provide more 
usable space for patrons and events. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The original budget for this project was $30,000.  The $51,071.00 price with the patio option is 
$21,071.00 over the original budget.  However, staff recommended, and the City Council 

6.e.v.



approved, a budget of $50,000 for the project for FY 24-25.  These funds are available July 1, 
2024.  Therefore, the option with the patio is $1,071.00 over the available budget with the 
material cost increase.  There are sufficient ½ Cent Sales Tax funds budgeted for the FY 24-25 
to cover the overage. 
 
 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends awarding the short form contract for the Adams Golf Course Roof 
Replacement to Canady Construction, for the option including the patio in the amount of 
$51,071.00. 





1

Micah Siemers

From: Mitchell B. Lucas
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 3:19 PM
To: Micah Siemers
Subject: FW: Adam's Clubhouse Project

Thank you sir! 
 

Mitchell Lucas 
Building Maintenance Supervisor  
City of Bartlesville 
1721 W. 5th street 
Bartlesville Ok. 74003  
(918) 338-4151 office 
(918) 440-1317 cell 
 
From: Steven Canady <canadyconstructionhms@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2023 2:15 PM 
To: Mitchell B. Lucas <mblucas@cityofbartlesville.org> 
Subject: Adam's Clubhouse Project 

 

CAUTION: External Source. THINK BEFORE YOU CLICK! 

Attn Mitch, 
 
 
Per our conversation concerning the 2 options for the Clubhouse Project, I am sending you this bid to 
encompass the possible costs. 
 
 
Bid 1)  
 
This job will consist of creating a 4/12 pitch over the North portion flat roof of the clubhouse, ridge line running 
North and South.  This will create a mirror image to that of the Souh side of the building. The new roof will end 
with a "hip" extending to the far North and a 1' overhang over the pre-existing East and West furthest most 
sides. Matching materials throughout.  
 
Bid 2) 
 
This job will consist of the same concept as described in Bid 1 with a difference of creating a covered porch 
area on the East side range ball platform/patio area.  This covered area will have the dimensions of 
51'4"x16'4".  This new area will provide roughly 838 sq. ft. of covered space.  The East side support line 
running North and South will be supported by 5, 8"×8" cedar post to be stained and sealed matching the pre-
existing sophet and any other exposed lumber. Matching materials throughout.  
 
Bid 1) 



2

 
Material.      $13,300.00 
Labor.           $19,160.00 
Total.            $32, 460.00 
 
 
Bid 2)  
 
Material.       $21,400.00 
Labor.           $25,880.00 
Total.             $47,820.00 
 
 
Difference between Bid 1 and Bid 2 is $14,820.00, to include,  material and labor. 
 
The bids I have presented are guaranteed not to increase unless change to the job has been authorized by 
you.  My bids are in fact subject to decreasing in the event materials or labor has come in lower than anticipated 
upon completion of the job.  
 
Questions or concerns please call me at (918) 214-5258 
 
Thanks, Steven Canady  
Canady Construction  
Lic. # CNTR-008342-2023 



1

Micah Siemers

From: Steven Canady <canadyconstructionhms@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 11:01 PM
To: Micah Siemers
Subject: Re: Golf Course Roof Replacement

CAUTION: External Source. THINK BEFORE YOU CLICK! 

Good evening, Micah 
 
The material has in fact changed since the original bid that took place 6 months ago in December that I left Mitch.  Very 
little increase between the trusses, lumber and metal, an added difference of $883.00 between all three.  The bigger 
increase was found in all the cedar; between the 8x8 post, header beams, sophet, fascia boards and trim. $2368.00 
increase within all the cedar.  Everything else was close enough in price comparison to not even mention.  My labor has 
gone up since then as well, another $5 hr per 2 man teams.  However, I will honor the original labor bid as I appreciate 
the business. Total material increase is $3251.00 for entire job. 
 
Questions or concerns please let me know. 
 
Canady Construction  
918-214-5258  
 
Thanks for your business, Steven Canady  
 
On Thu, Apr 18, 2024, 08:43 Micah Siemers <wmsiemers@cityofbartlesville.org> wrote: 

Good morning Steve, 

  

It was good to talk to you this morning.  As we discussed, if we want to get a contract on the May 6th City Council 
agenda, I’ll need an updated quote by May 1st.  If we miss the May meeting it’s probably not a big deal if you can’t start 
until closer to July anyway.  We could always shoot for the June meeting if needed.  That said, I have included the draft 
short form contract we had discussed for you to take a look at.  I have also included the original email quotes you sent 
for your reference when you’re working on getting updated numbers.  Hopefully not a big change, but I understand, 
that was back in December and things could have changed. 

  

Looking forward to working with you on this one. 

  

Best regards, 

  

Micah Siemers, P.E., CFM 

Director of Engineering 



2

City of Bartlesville 

918-338-4256 Phone 

918-338-4259 Fax 

wmsiemers@cityofbartlesville.org 

  



Agenda Item ___ 
June 27, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approve contract with Brightly for purchase and implementation of asset management software. 
 
Attachments: 

Brightly quote and contract 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
“Effective Infrastructure Network” is one of the strategic priorities of the Bartlesville Next 
strategic plan. Developing an asset management program for infrastructure was one of the goals 
within that strategic priority. To facilitate this goal, staff need a streamlined way to record, 
manage, and track the infrastructure assets of the City of Bartlesville. Currently, staff do not have 
an integrated way to manage the City’s infrastructure. There are many different software 
platforms available and staff have looked at different vendors to provide this service.  Staff 
narrowed the search down to two vendors, iWorQ and Brightly.  IT, Engineering, Water Utilities, 
and Public Works staff went through multiple demos of each software with each of the vendors 
and determined that Brightly was the best fit based upon how the software integrates with the 
City’s GIS mapping and the apparent user friendliness and functionality of the software. This 
software will allow staff to track and manage things like age, condition, rehabilitation, and 
replacement of infrastructure ranging from streets to water lines to HVAC equipment. The 
software will also provide a user-friendly work order system for work done with City staff. 

 
III. BUDGET IMPACT 

 
Staff has negotiated a price of $58,680.35 for the first year that includes the initial startup and 
implementation of the software.  After the first year, it is a subscription-based software which is 
typical.  The schedule through Year 5 is included in the quote and ranges from $53,901.11 and 
$58,899.18 for years 2 and 5, respectively.  The FY 24-25 operation budget included $60,000 in 
the Tech Services budget to cover the cost of software and implementation for Year 1.  Funds 
will have to be included each year in the Tech Services operational budget moving forward. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the contract for asset management software to Brightly for 
$58,680.35. 

6.e.vi.



PREPARED FOR
C O B ("S")

401 S J

B, OK 74003

PREPARED BY
B S I ("C")

11000 R P, S 300

C, NC 27518

Du Suts s w Brty. Swr-ss stwr, w   .

Mt Brty t rtystwr.

PUBLISHED ON

M 15, 2024

1



Q-379622

S/NJPA  

• https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/cooperative-purchasing/090320-sdi#tab-contract-
documents (https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/cooperative-purchasing/090320-sdi#tab-
contract-documents).

• C #090320-SDI

Susrt Tr: 60ts (08/01/2024 - 06/30/2029)

Pr Bs : 37,384 Put

Cu Srvs

It Strt Dt E Dt Dsut %
Surw

At
Dsut Ivstt

A
E
E

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% 35,067.77 USD

- F/
P P
M

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- T
PM

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- S/
S/
S
M

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- SW
M

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- E 
GM

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- W
D
W
W
C
M

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

2



Cu Srvs

It Strt Dt E Dt Dsut %
Surw

At
Dsut Ivstt

- S
M

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- P,
R
 F
M

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- FM 8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- O
M

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- D
A

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 I

- AE S 8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- A
E
I

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

- GIS A
M

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

C
P
E

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% 13,355.08 USD

- P
S/S/
S

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% I

P
F/
P P

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% 75% 2,670.91 USD

P
F

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% 75% 2,670.91 USD

P
WW
C

8/1/2024 6/30/2025 21.00% 75% 2,670.91 USD

3



5.0 M()          08/01/
2024 - 12/31/2024

-25,852.23 USD

M-P B D -4,587.50 USD

Sutt: 25,995.85 USD

Prss Srvs

It Pr Bs O
Dsut %
Surw Ivstt

A E
E
I
 C

37,384.00
P 5.00% 14,536.90 USD

C P
E
I

O-T 25,560.00 USD

P
E
I
P

O-T
P

-7,412.40 USD

Sutt: 32,684.5 USD

Tt It Ivstt 58,680.35 USD

• C P E I        P A
CM.

• T     P E I     
  J 30, 2024.

• U  ,            
  .

4



Cu Srvs Susrt

It

Ivstt
Yr 2 Strt
Dt: 07/01/

2025

Ivstt
Yr 3 Strt
Dt: 07/01/

2026

Ivstt
Yr 4 Strt
Dt: 07/01/

2027

Ivstt
Yr 5 Strt
Dt: 07/01/

2028

A E E 39,403.42 USD 40,585.53 USD 41,803.09 USD
43,057.18

USD

- F/P P
M

I I I I

- T PM I I I I

- S/S/S
M

I I I I

- SWM I I I I

- E  GM I I I I

- W D W
W CM

I I I I

- SM I I I I

- P, R  F
M

I I I I

- FM I I I I

- OM I I I I

- D A I I I I

- AE S I I I I

- A E I I I I I

- GIS AM I I I I

C P E 15,006.26 USD 15,456.44 USD 15,920.14 USD
16,397.74

USD

- P S/S/
S

I I I I

5



Cu Srvs Susrt

It

Ivstt
Yr 2 Strt
Dt: 07/01/

2025

Ivstt
Yr 3 Strt
Dt: 07/01/

2026

Ivstt
Yr 4 Strt
Dt: 07/01/

2027

Ivstt
Yr 5 Strt
Dt: 07/01/

2028

P F/P
P

3,001.13 USD 3,091.16 USD 3,183.90 USD 3,279.41 USD

P F 3,001.13 USD 3,091.16 USD 3,183.90 USD 3,279.41 USD

PWW
C

3,001.13 USD 3,091.16 USD 3,183.90 USD 3,279.41 USD

M-P B
P

-9,511.96 USD -9,797.32 USD
-10,091.24

USD
-10,393.97

USD

Tt
53,901.11

USD
55,518.13

USD
57,183.69

USD
58,899.18

USD

6



Asst Essts Itt wt
Csut

GIS Rr Sttt Wr
Sury:

C        S   A E, 
- CMM S – G I S (GIS) .
T           -   
     '  ;      
;       ;    ,   ; 
       -.

I S: T D         SOW

1. A E GIS I
2. A E GIS T

Dvrs:

• P   
• A GIS  
• GIS 
• U   (UAT)
• E U   A  F U 

At Prss:

A    ,  P C     S  
   P C P.

• P   
• K  .
• D  
• D, ,    .

• A D L
• A GIS     AE     .

• A C
• GIS           .

7



• U A T
• C- --    UAT    

 .

• E U T
• A  F U        .

Assuts:

S A:

• T       /       .
• IT         ,  ,  ,

           IP .
• T         . C  

   2            
.

• F - , S        ,  
   /, , ,     .

• W             E  CSV . E  
                
  .

• I          , C   S   
  .

• S          . N   
  .

C A:

• C     3        .
• F - , C   S       .
• A       SOW       .

Prt Su:

• K- C  P C
• C    
• I  
• A 
• S   ,     
• A  C' - LM S
• A     

• D  C
• I       &  
• O  AE   ,    
• D  GIS       KPI

8



• D , ,   
• S        

• D   C
• R, ,    GIS 

• A   C
• W O  M
• C P
• M P
• C GIS M 
• C GIS L 
• A 

• U A T
• C      --     
• D     

• C  E U T  A  F U 
• E--    
• D   

• P C

CMt:

S     C          
     C. S       . A
        SOW     P,   
       .

Iv:

A    G L S,            
  .

Asst Essts Itt wt
Csut Sttt Wr

Sury:

9



C        S   A E
(AE),  - CMM S. T    
      -         ' 
;       ;      
;    ,   ;         -.

I S: T D         SOW:

1. A E I  C
2. A E T
3. P C G-L S

Dvrs:

• P   
• A , , , PM  D L
• A 
• U   (UAT)
• E U   A  F U 
• G-L 

At Prss:

A    ,  P C     S  
   P C P.

• P   
• K  
• D  
• D, ,    

• A  
• A , , , PM      AE    

.

• A C
• A          .

• U A T
• C- --    UAT    S

   .

• E U T
• A  F U       .

• G-L S

10



• 30- G-L S    .

Assuts:

S A:

• T       /       .
• IT         ,  ,  ,

           IP .
• T         . C  

   2            
.

• F  , S        ,  
   /, , ,     .

• W             E  CSV . E  
                
  .

• I S           , C  
S      .

• S    (5)      . N   
  .

C A:

• C     3        .
• O E U T   , 30- G-L S  ,     4

 30- -   I S. I      
-,        .

• F - , C   S       .
• A       SOW       .

Prt su  r:

• K- C  P C
• C    
• I  
• A 
• S   ,     
• A  C' - LM S
• A     

• D  C
• I       &  
• O  AE   ,    
• D  AE       KPI
• D    
• S        

11



• D   C
• R, ,    , , ,   PM 

• A   C
• P  - 
• R/     
• C   //   

• U A T
• C      --     
• D     

• C  E U T  A  F U 
• E--    
• D   

• G-L S
• C  (4)  -   I S  S
• C I     . W  

 , I S    C S
• I S        

• P C

S Prt T (rt tsy vry):

CMt:

S     C          
     C. S       . A
        SOW     P,   
       .

Iv:

12



A    G L S,            
  .

13



S Trs r Asst Essts:

A E          200GB  . D   
200GB     .

14



Prtr Etrrs Itt 
Tr - Sttt Wr

P 2

Purs

T    P E I  T S,   ,   
  , ,          P E
             C'  
 . T   ,  B' (C) S C (C) 
   C   ( )     -
 *   C' .

T   , - ,  - , C   
             P E.
W    , C          -
       "-"         
C S C.

Vu

B   B,             
P E. I ,      P E I  T
S :

• W      C     ()   
()    SOW    C' ;

• C      ()  P    ()    SOW
   C'   ;

• O (1)        C. T     
C        ; ,    
  ();

• S     P E  W  ;
• G         ;

*A "-  "     P E    
           P E .
H,   ‘-'             
    - . A        
  . F ,          
   .

P    ,  -          
 ( ):

15



• P

Mty  Ar

Ts 1: Pr-Wrs K-OMt  Prrt

C     C'  PM    K-OM
     C'         
.

Su-Ts 1.1: K-OMt

[R T:   2  ]

T    K-OM  :

1. R    ;
2. R  ;
3. R       ;
4. S  ;
5. D         P E  C ;
6. A  , ,   .

Su-Ts 1.2: Pr-Wrs Prrt

[R T:    ,    16 ]

P          :

1. C        C,    (  GIS),
  , ,  ,        
  . C   C         
 . C           
                  
C    .

2. S        K-O ,    C
 P E    . A       C 
     , K B,  L . T C  
   . A   C IT    .

Ct Rssts

1. D  PM. T       C    ,
 ,  ,            

16



 .
2. D      D G W . C  

             
          - .

3. D          P E. T   
   ,       , , 
,    . T       C  
    .

4. C   /          
 C.

5. C          (WE, Z,  ). T
C         C .

Dvrs

1. A   P K-OM,    (2)   ,   
 C' S C     C  C  .

Ts 2: LyM Tr M BuWrs [Rt Ts: Tr-y urt]

A           C   - -
. I,          (1)   (3) 
. T        C       
      -      , 
 C' .

T    :

1. O P  D

W S 1: (3 )

P: SM, A S M, GIS , PM

C             
 P E. P          
 C   :

1. I   ;
2. A     ,  ,  P E;

17



3. A -            
P E    ;

4. I  GIS;
5. R .

2. LM D  T  A G 1

W S 2: (3 )

W S 3: (3 )

P: C A SM   (), PM

C              
(). T       C     P E,
GIS,     . W      P
E          . A     
    :

. T . T        ,   
,   .

. S S ( C) . C       , 
 ,   , ,           .

. L    , , ,   ,     
      .

. D P. T     ().
. D . A           

  . E  , , ,  .
. DM. H              

.
. C    ,           ().
. B . A         . O   

     .
. D . E   C'       . M  

      .
. F . A    C          

        .
. D    F S  AGIS O
. D . E   C'       . M  

      . S       .
. F . A    C          

        .
. P E R
. P P E    AGIS     F C

18



3. W U

W S 4: (3 )

P: PM     

T               
 . T          ,  IT  
      .

Ct Rssts

1. C          (MS T, Z,  ).
T C         C .

2. C         -     
.

Dvrs

1. C   .
2. R TW     C S C  

.
3. F- P E       .
4. A            P E .
5. T C    -    C' PM   

           .

Ts 3: Pst Wrs Tr  Surt

[R T:    ,    16 ]

D   (1)       - P
E  ,  C         -  
     C      T 2 . T    
    C          (), , ,  
     C       P E . T
       C'   .

1. A        ,   ,  
. T C PM        C S

19



S C    .
2. A C'  ,  C        ,

,        C       
 C .

3. S            ,   
  C          
  C .

Prt Assuts

C         SOW        .
I     C    ,   C  
  A. D      C'   
  . A   , ,        P C,
       .

• C  C            
           . H   
             
   .

• C      I   -      
    . A      P     C
C.

• P       -       -
   .

• A  24-        P      
  . T      /-     
      .

• P  ,           ,
       . A      
       .

Exu r Srvs

F    ,      :

• U     C ,     , ,
,          .

• T      IT ,     
 B / GIS   .

• M       ,     O F.
• U     .
• E                O F.

20



Mst B - Iv Su

I   P EM D        
. B           .

Predictor Enterprise Model

Development Milestones
Description Percentage

Kickoff and Data Gathering Kickoff meeting and initial model preparation (Task 1) 50%

Workshop Sessions and Wrap Up Lifecycle model building, workshop sessions and wrap up (Task 2) 50%

21



Orr trs

• B   O,          
, S      S F    S T 
.

• P : N 30
• B   C S   A.

• T "E D"   A  S  C    S 
 O.

• T O   O        B S, I. M S
A   ://./ (://./
) ("A"),  S        B
S, I. ("C")   O,         .
A         A. N      .
T        S        
   O        A      
   .

• T         P S    O, 
P S A   ://./
(://./)      A  .

• D  S T, C ,    S' S F, 
    ("S S")     8:00 AM  6:00 PM EST, (8:00
 – 8:00  EST  C D S) M  F ("B H"),
 C H.

• C      S F   S T   
               CPI  
     12. A    S T  
   - .

• A   O              
        ,    . I     
,           ,      O  
   O.

• P    (60) .

• S              
O . I  S         O 
  O,   S    O        
     -. S     
    (30)      -. S  -
        ,    O
  -          
      S T     O. S    
       ,   F.

At rt

22



• P          . A      
S. T    . F     U S,     
          ()   "S T"
   S. T      
@. (:@.).

• B          .

• P  Q-379622        
P@B. (:P@B.)

• B S, I.       .

23



Illuminate: Bringing the best Ideas to Light

Brightly’s Illuminate conference is a place for operations and asset management leaders to
gather and share our collective wisdom, spotlighting the best new ideas and learning from one
another to realize a brighter future. Take stock of where you’ve been and plan for where you’re
going while connecting with industry peers and experts as passionate to help their
organizations thrive as you are.

Brightly’s Illuminate conference is a gathering of the brightest minds in operations and asset
management, where you can connect with leaders in their field, exchange expertise, and
uncover new opportunities to realize a brighter future

Illuminate is March 11th-14th. Attendees are in for the best in-person conference yet, with more
knowledge, training, and technology than ever before.

Enlighten Share your expertise and level up your knowledge with hands-on education and
training you can bring back to your team.

Envision

Explore the brightest ideas and smartest solutions to elevate the work your organization is
doing and realize your vision for the future.

Engage

Broaden your professional network by sharing wisdom with fellow operations and asset
management leaders.

The Brightly Bundle includes meals, a 4-night hotel stay and tuition. Registration is open
beginning October 1st, 2023 through March 8th, 2024.

24



25



Stur
Presented to:
Q-379622
J 12, 2024, 5:05:58 PM

Accepted by:

Prt N

S N

Tt

Dt

26



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           1 
 

 
 

Solicitation Number: RFP #090320 
 

CONTRACT 
 
 
This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and Dude Solutions, Inc., 11000 Regency Pkwy. #110, Cary, NC  27518 
(Vendor). 

  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government agency and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to government entities. Participation is open to federal, 
state/province, and municipal governmental entities, higher education, K-12 education, 
nonprofit, tribal government, and other public entities located in the United States and Canada.     

  
Vendor desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and the entities that access Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts 
(Participating Entities).  

 
1. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
B. EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires November 2, 2024, unless it is 
cancelled sooner pursuant to Article 24. This Contract may be extended up to one additional 
one-year period upon request of Sourcewell and with written agreement by Vendor. 
 
C. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Articles 11 through 16 survive the expiration or cancellation of this 
Contract.  
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Vendor will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Vendor’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    
 
All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new/current model.  Vendor 
may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated in 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           2 
 

Vendor’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Participating Entities in advance, 
Equipment or Products must be delivered as operational to the Participating Entity’s site.     
 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.   
 
B. WARRANTY. Vendor warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship. 
In addition, Vendor warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will 
perform in accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended. Vendor’s dealers and 
distributors must agree to assist the Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute 
over warranty terms with the manufacturer.  Any manufacturer’s warranty that is effective past 
the expiration of the Vendor’s warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity.   
 
C. DEALERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND/OR RESELLERS. Upon Contract execution, Vendor will 
make available to Sourcewell a means to validate or authenticate Vendor’s authorized dealers, 
distributors, and/or resellers relative to the Equipment, Products, and Services related to this 
Contract. This list may be updated from time-to-time and is incorporated into this Contract by 
reference. It is the Vendor’s responsibility to ensure Sourcewell receives the most current 
version of this list.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced as stated in Vendor’s 
Proposal.  
 
When providing pricing quotes to Participating Entities, all pricing quoted must reflect a 
Participating Entity’s total cost of acquisition. This means that the quoted cost is for delivered 
Equipment, Products, and Services that are operational for their intended purpose, and 
includes all costs to the Participating Entity’s requested delivery location.   
 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Participating Entity, the total cost associated 
with any purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in 
the pricing quote to the applicable Participating Entity at the time of purchase.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, Vendor must permit the Equipment and Products to be 
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Participating Entities. 
Participating Entities reserve the right to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable 
time after delivery where circumstances or conditions prevent effective inspection of the 
Equipment and Products at the time of delivery. 
   



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           3 
 

Vendor must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 
Sourcewell may declare the Vendor in breach of this Contract if the Vendor intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products. In the event of the delivery of 
nonconforming Equipment and Products, the Participating Entity will notify the Vendor as soon 
as possible and the Vendor will replace nonconforming Equipment and Products with 
conforming Equipment and Products that are acceptable to the Participating Entity. 
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Vendor with valid tax-
exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-
exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Vendor may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Vendor determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   
 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Participating Entities. 
 

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Vendor may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. This form is available 
from the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. At a minimum, the request must:  
 

 Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number; 
 Clearly specify the requested change; 
 Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change; 
 Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested change, 

along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change); and 
 Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel with the 

effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The new pricing 
restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, even for those 
items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           4 
 

A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will be become an 
amendment to this Contract and be incorporated by reference.  

 
5. PARTICIPATION, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND PARTICIPATING ENTITY REQUIREMENTS 

  
A. PARTICIPATION. Sourcewell’s cooperative contracts are available and open to public and 
nonprofit entities across the United States and Canada; such as federal, state/province, 
municipal, K-12 and higher education, tribal government, and other public entities.   
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Participating Entities that can legally 
access the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Participating Entity’s 
authority to access this Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, 
or joint powers laws. Any entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service 
Member of Sourcewell during such time of access. Vendor understands that a Participating 
Entity’s use of this Contract is at the Participating Entity’s sole convenience and Participating 
Entities reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products, or Services from any other source. 
 
Vendor is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell contract use 
eligibility requirements and documentation and will encourage potential members to join 
Sourcewell.  Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Participating Entities to its roster 
during the term of this Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Vendor’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Vendor’s employees and agents must conduct themselves in 
a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Participating Entity 
policies and procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. PARTICIPATING ENTITY USE AND PURCHASING 
 
A. ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under 
this Contract, a Participating Entity must clearly indicate to Vendor that it intends to access this 
Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and 
Vendor. Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Vendor. If a Participating 
Entity issues a purchase order, it may use its own forms, but the purchase order should clearly 
note the applicable Sourcewell contract number. All Participating Entity orders under this 
Contract must be issued prior to expiration of this Contract; however, Vendor performance, 
Participating Entity payment, and any applicable warranty periods or other Vendor or 
Participating Entity obligations may extend beyond the term of this Contract.  
 
Vendor’s acceptable forms of payment are included in Attachment A.  Participating Entities will 
be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no liability for any unpaid invoice of 
any Participating Entity.   
 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           5 
 

B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS/PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM. Additional terms and 
conditions to a purchase order may be negotiated between a Participating Entity and Vendor, 
such as job or industry-specific requirements, legal requirements (e.g., affirmative action or 
immigration status requirements), or specific local policy requirements. Some Participating 
Entitles may require the use of a Participating Addendum; the terms of which will be worked 
out directly between the Participating Entity and the Vendor.  Any negotiated additional terms 
and conditions must never be less favorable to the Participating Entity than what is contained in 
this Contract. 
 
C. PERFORMANCE BOND. If requested by a Participating Entity, Vendor will provide a 
performance bond that meets the requirements set forth in the Participating Entity’s order.  

 
D. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Participating Entity requires 
service or specialized performance requirements (such as e-commerce specifications, 
specialized delivery requirements, or other specifications and requirements) not addressed in 
this Contract, the Participating Entity and the Vendor may enter into a separate, standalone 
agreement, apart from this Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not 
be made a party to a claim for breach of such agreement.   
 
E. TERMINATION OF ORDERS. Participating Entities may terminate an order, in whole or 
in part, immediately upon notice to Vendor in the event of any of the following events:   
 

1. The Participating Entity fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body 
at levels sufficient to pay for the goods to be purchased; 
2. Federal,  state, or provincial laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Participating Entity’s requirements; or 
3. Vendor commits any material breach of this Contract or the additional terms agreed to 
between the Vendor and a Participating Entity. 

 
F. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Participating Entity’s order will be determined by the Participating Entity making the purchase.   
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Vendor will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

 Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
 Timely response to all Sourcewell and Participating Entity inquiries; and 
 Business reviews to Sourcewell and Participating Entities, if applicable. 

 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           6 
 

B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Vendor must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to Participating Entities, 
pricing and contract terms, administrative fees, supply issues, customer issues, and any other 
necessary information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Vendor must provide a contract 
sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this 
Contract. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Vendor must submit a report indicating no sales were made).  
 
The Report must contain the following fields: 
 

 Customer Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
 Customer Physical Street Address; 
 Customer City; 
 Customer State/Province; 
 Customer Zip Code; 
 Customer Contact Name; 
 Customer Contact Email Address; 
 Customer Contact Telephone Number; 
 Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Participating Entity Number; 
 Item Purchased Description; 
 Item Purchased Price;  
 Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
 Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Vendor. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Vendor will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Participating Entities. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not 
added to, the pricing. Vendor may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted 
price to offset the Administrative Fee. 
 
The Vendor will submit a check payable to Sourcewell for the percentage of administrative fee 
stated in the Proposal multiplied by the total sales of all Equipment, Products, and Services 
purchased by Participating Entities under this Contract during each calendar quarter. Payments 
should note the Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo and must be mailed to the 
address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable.” Payments must be received no later than 45 
calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           7 
 

Vendor agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Vendor is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Vendor in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than 30 days 
from the cancellation date.  

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 
Vendor’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Vendor’s Proposal. If Vendor’s 
Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Vendor must promptly 
notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 
10. ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 

 
A. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the Vendor nor Sourcewell may assign or transfer any rights or 
obligations under this Contract without the prior consent of the parties and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld.     
 
B. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been fully executed by the parties.   
 
C. WAIVER. If either party fails to enforce any provision of this Contract, that failure does not 
waive the provision or the right to enforce it. 
 
D. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract contains all negotiations and agreements between 
Sourcewell and Vendor. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or 
oral, may be used to bind either party. 
 
E. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 
respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, or any other 
relationship such as master-servant, or principal-agent.  

 
11. LIABILITY 

  
Vendor must indemnify, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including their 
agents and employees, harmless from any claims or causes of action, including attorneys’ fees, 
arising out of the performance of this Contract by the Vendor or its agents or employees; this 
indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to have been caused 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           8 
 

by some defect in the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract to the extent the 
Equipment, Product, or Service has been used according to its specifications. 

 
12. AUDITS 

 
Sourcewell reserves the right to review the books, records, documents, and accounting 
procedures and practices of the Vendor relevant to this Contract for a minimum of 6 years from 
the end of this Contract. This clause extends to Participating Entities as it relates to business 
conducted by that Participating Entity under this Contract. 
 

13. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 
 
Vendor and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Vendor under this Contract.  
 
If the Vendor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Vendor must 
immediately notify Sourcewell and Sourcewell will assist with how the Vendor should respond 
to the request. 
 

14. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
As applicable, Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Sourcewell and its Participating 
Entities against any and all suits, claims, judgments, and costs instituted or recovered against 
Sourcewell or Participating Entities by any person on account of the use of any Equipment or 
Products by Sourcewell or its Participating Entities supplied by Vendor in violation of applicable 
patent or copyright laws. 
 

15. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 
 

A. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
1. Grant of License. During the term of this Contract: 

a. Sourcewell grants to Vendor a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use theTrademark(s) provided to Vendor by Sourcewell in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing Sourcewell’s relationship with 
Vendor. 
b. Vendor grants to Sourcewell a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use Vendor’s Trademarks in advertising and promotional materials for the 
purpose of marketing Vendor’s relationship with Sourcewell. 

2. Limited Right of Sublicense. The right and license granted herein includes a limited right 
of each party to grant sublicenses to its and their respective distributors, marketing 
representatives, and agents (collectively “Permitted Sublicensees”) in advertising and 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           9 
 

promotional materials for the purpose of marketing the Parties’ relationship to Participating 
Entities. Any sublicense granted will be subject to the terms and conditions of this Article. 
Each party will be responsible for any breach of this Article by any of their respective 
sublicensees.  
3. Use; Quality Control.  

a. Sourcewell must not alter Vendor’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Vendor and must comply with Vendor’s removal requests as to specific uses of its 
trademarks or logos.   
b. Vendor must not alter Sourcewell’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Sourcewell and must comply with Sourcewell’s removal requests as to specific uses 
of its trademarks or logos.   
c. Each party agrees to use, and to cause its Permitted Sublicensees to use, the 
other party’s Trademarks only in good faith and in a dignified manner consistent 
with such party’s use of the Trademarks. Upon written notice to the breaching party, 
the breaching party has 30 days of the date of the written notice to cure the breach 
or the license will be terminated.  

4. Termination. Upon the termination of this Contract for any reason, each party, including 
Permitted Sublicensees, will have 30 days to remove all Trademarks from signage, websites, 
and the like bearing the other party’s name or logo (excepting Sourcewell’s pre-printed 
catalog of vendors which may be used until the next printing).  Vendor must return all 
marketing and promotional materials, including signage, provided by Sourcewell, or dispose 
of it according to Sourcewell’s written directions. 

 
B. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Vendor individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
C. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Participating Entities must be 
approved by Sourcewell. Materials should be sent to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator 
assigned to this Contract.   
 
D. ENDORSEMENT. The Vendor must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
16. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
Minnesota law governs this Contract. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Contract, or its 
breach, must be in the appropriate state court in Todd County or federal court in Fergus Falls, 
Minnesota.  
 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           10 
 

17. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under 
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 
 

18. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void then both 
Sourcewell and Vendor will be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the 
remainder of this Contract is capable of performance, it will not be affected by such declaration 
or finding and must be fully performed. 
 

19. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 
 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  
 

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute and 
work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If necessary, 
Sourcewell and the Vendor will jointly develop a short briefing document that describes the 
issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  
2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as specified 
above, either Sourcewell or Vendor may escalate the resolution of the issue to a higher 
level of management. The Vendor will have 30 calendar days to cure an outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the 
Vendor must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities under the 
Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Vendor fails to continue without delay 
to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment of all undisputed 
work, any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its Participating Entities as a result 
of such failure to proceed will be borne by the Vendor. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Participating Entity order under this Contract, in default:   

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
Written notice of default and a reasonable opportunity to cure must be issued by the party 
claiming default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for liquidated 
or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting 
party may: 
 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           11 
 

 Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
 Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued against the 

Contract. 
 

20. INSURANCE 
  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Vendor must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect at 
all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

 Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

  
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Vendor will maintain insurance covering 
its operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no 
less broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition), or equivalent. At a minimum, coverage must include 
liability arising from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, 
contractual liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising 
injury. All required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during 
the term of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Vendor will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles 
in limits of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms 
no less broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer), 
or equivalent. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           12 
 

4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain 
umbrella coverage over Workers’ Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and 
Commercial Automobile. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
5. Professional/Technical, Errors and Omissions, and/or Miscellaneous Professional 
Liability. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for all claims 
the Vendor may become legally obligated to pay resulting from any actual or alleged 
negligent act, error, or omission related to Vendor’s professional services required 
under this Contract.  

 Minimum Limits:  
$2,000,000 per claim or event 
$2,000,000 – annual aggregate 

 
6. Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. During the term of this 
Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for network security and privacy liability. The 
coverage may be endorsed on another form of liability coverage or written on a 
standalone policy. The insurance must cover claims which may arise from failure of 
Vendor’s security resulting in, but not limited to, computer attacks, unauthorized 
access, disclosure of not public data – including but not limited to, confidential or 
private information, transmission of a computer virus, or denial of service.  

 Minimum limits:  
$2,000,000 per occurrence 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
Failure of Vendor to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Vendor must furnish 
to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must be signed by 
a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. All policies must include 
there will be no cancellation, suspension, non-renewal, or reduction of coverage without 30 
days’ prior written notice to the Vendor.   
 
Upon request, Vendor must provide to Sourcewell copies of applicable policies and 
endorsements, within 10 days of a request. Failure to request certificates of insurance by 
Sourcewell, or failure of Vendor to provide certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves 
Vendor of its duties and responsibilities in this Contract.  
 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           13 
 

C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY 
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Vendor agrees to list Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including 
their officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Vendor’s commercial 
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or 
“work” performed by or on behalf of Vendor, and products and completed operations of 
Vendor. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that coverage is 
primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and collectible 
insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds.   
 
D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Vendor waives and must require (by endorsement or 
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional 
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other 
insurance applicable to the Vendor or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all 
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance 
maintained by the Vendor or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Vendor must require 
similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.   
 
E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY. The limits required by this Contract can be met by either 
providing a primary policy or in combination with umbrella/excess liability policy(ies). 
 
F. SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS. Any self-insured retention in excess of $10,000 is subject to 
Sourcewell’s approval.  
 

21. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 
B. LICENSES. Vendor must maintain a valid and current status on all required federal, 
state/provincial, and local licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the 
business that the Vendor conducts with Sourcewell and Participating Entities. 

 
22. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 
Vendor certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Vendor declares bankruptcy, Vendor must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 
Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           14 
 

operated by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian 
government, as applicable; or any Participating Entity. Vendor certifies and warrants that 
neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the subject 
matter of this Contract. Vendor further warrants that it will provide immediate written notice 
to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 

23. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Participating Entities that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or 
services from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the 
procurement standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Participating Entities may also require 
additional requirements based on specific funding specifications. Within this Article, all 
references to “federal” should be interpreted to mean the United States federal government. 
The following list only applies when a Participating Entity accesses Vendor’s Equipment, 
Products, or Services with United States federal funds. 
 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to 
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current 
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The 
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the 
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to 
the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           15 
 

Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that 
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Vendor must be in 
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 
C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of 
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess 
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements 
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Vendor certifies that during the term of an 
award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Vendor must 
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Vendor 
certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this 
procurement process, Vendor must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require 
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Vendor 
certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements as 
referenced above. 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           16 
 

 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Vendor 
certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency. 
 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Vendors must file 
any required certifications. Vendors must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award 
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Vendors must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Vendors must file all certifications and disclosures 
required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 
1352). 
 
H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply with 
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Vendor further certifies 
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of 3 years after 
grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial 
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
I. ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor 
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and Conservation Act. 
 
J. BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply 
with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance with the 
Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open 
competition. 
 
K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Vendor agrees that duly authorized 
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and 
records of Vendor that are directly pertinent to Vendor’s discharge of its obligations under this 
Contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The right 



090320-SDI 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           17 
 

also includes timely and reasonable access to Vendor’s personnel for the purpose of interview 
and discussion relating to such documents. 
 
L. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A non-federal entity that is 
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply 
with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in 
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. § 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines.  
 

24. CANCELLATION 
 

Sourcewell or Vendor may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon 60 
days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Vendor’s Proposal.  
Cancellation of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or service 
obligations incurred or accrued prior to cancellation. 

 
Sourcewell            Dude Solutions, Inc. 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz Brian Benfer 

Title: Director of Operations & 
Procurement/CPO 

Title: SVP of Sales 

 
Date: ________________________ 

Date: ________________________ 

Approved:  
  

By: __________________________ 
 

Chad Coauette  
Title: Executive Director/CEO  
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



Bid Number: RFP 090320 Vendor Name: Dude Solutions



 
 
 

Sourcewell Contract #090320-SDI | Amendment #1 
Page 1 of 1 

AMENDMENT #1 
TO  

CONTRACT # 090320-SDI 
 
 
THIS AMENDMENT, effective upon the date of the last signature below, is by and between 
Sourcewell and Brightly Software, Inc. (Supplier). 
 
Sourcewell awarded a contract to Dude Solutions, Inc. to provide Public Sector and Education 
Administration Software Solutions with Related Services, to Sourcewell and its Participating 
Entities, effective November 6, 2020, through November 2, 2024 (Contract). 
 
Supplier notified Sourcewell that it changed its name to Brightly Software, Inc. Supplier has 
requested modification to the Sourcewell Contract to reflect the name change. 
 
The parties wish to amend the Contract as follows:  

 
Throughout the Contract, the name “Dude Solutions, Inc.,” will be replaced with “Brightly 
Software, Inc.” 
 
Except as amended by this Amendment, the Contract remains in full force and effect. 
 
Sourcewell Brightly Software, Inc. 
 
 
By:       By:      
Jeremy Schwartz, Chief Procurement Officer  Dan Graham, 
 
Date:        Date:        
 
Approved:       
 
 
By:      
Chad Coauette, Executive Director/CEO   
 
Date:       

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

June 26, 2024 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of Amendment #1 to the professional service contract with Murray 
GeoConsulting LLC, for Monitoring and Reporting of Constituents of Emerging 
Concern (CEC) for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Indirect Potable Reuse pilot 
plant study.  

Attachments: 
 Amendment #1 - Professional Service Agreement 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

The proposed wastewater treatment plant expansion includes an indirect water reuse 
component, which provides additional treatment before water is pumped and 
discharged into the Caney River upstream of the raw water intake in Johnstone Park, 
to supplement the water within the river.  Though the City has studied and tested this 
indirect potable reuse concept, which facilitated the Oklahoma Department of 
Environmental Quality’s (ODEQ) permitting of new a discharge location as well as 
the pipeline and pump station to move the treated water to this new discharge 
location, ODEQ regulations requires a pilot plant study to demonstrate performance 
of this treatment.  The pilot study began in February 2024 and was set to conclude at 
the end of May 2024.  However, we’ve extended the study for another month and it 
now concludes at the end of June 2024. 
A component of the pilot plant study will be to test for Constituents of Emerging 
Concern (CEC), which are a group of synthetic or naturally occurring chemicals that 
are not currently regulated under the Clean Water Act or Safe Drinking Water Act.  
These CEC’s include prescription and nonprescription drugs, home care products, 
antibiotics, industrial and household products, hormones, endocrine disrupters and 
engineered nanomaterials.  In February 2024, the City contracted with Dr. Kyle 
Murray, Murray GeoConsulting, to perform the CEC sampling for the pilot study for 
$20,700.  With the extension of the pilot plant operation for another month and the 
addition of more CEC tests within the first portion of the study, the City requested an 
amendment with Murray GeoConsulting to extend their services through the end of 
the pilot plant study and compensate for additional testing done during the original 
study.  The cost of the additional services is $15,850.   
 
 
 
 

6.e.vii.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
III. BUDGET IMPACT 

Funding for the professional services will be through the Wastewater Capital Reserve 
Fund, which has $4,500,000 available.  The proposed amendment ($15,850) is within 
the available budget for the project. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of Amendment #1 to the contract with Murray 
GeoConsulting LLC for $15,850. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AMENDMENT to CONSULTING AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT 

This Agreement is entered into by and between Murray GeoConsulting, LLC (“MGC”) and the 

City of Bartlesville ('Sponsor"), collectively, the "Parties”. 

ARTICLE 1 PROJECT AND PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR 

MGC will conduct the work, based on Proposal “Monitoring and Reporting Plan for Constituents 

of Emerging Concern (CEC)”, dated January 29, 2024, with Dr. Kyle E. Murray acting as the PI. 

Amended ARTICLE 2 PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 

The period of performance under this Agreement shall be from 02/01/2024 to 08/31/2024. 

Amended ARTICLE 3 TASKS AND DELIVERABLES – Increased Personnel Time and Expenses 

The main task (conducting effluent sampling and coordinating CEC analyses with Eurofins 

required an increased level of effort by MGC. Two scientists traveled to Bartlesville in Feb, Mar, Apr, May, 

and June to effectively complete the sampling. Additional personnel time and travel costs were committed 

to the project to adjust pH of samples with additional ascorbic acid and field check pH during sampling, 

clear up analytical requirements with the lab manager, pipette HCl for pre-preservation, ensure that 1,4-

Dioxane was included in Mar, Apr, and May analyses, and to process additional and multiple laboratory 

data. 

Amended ARTICLE 4 COMPENSATION 

4.1 Original compensation under this Agreement, was a total amount not to exceed $20,700. 

Sponsor paid three invoices in the amount of $3450 for Feb, Mar, and Apr 2024, for a total of $10,350. 

4.2 Additional support is requested for a total amount not to exceed $36,550. MGC will invoice for 

$6550 for May, Jun, Jul, and Aug 2024. 

IN WITNESS WHEROF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 

authorized representatives. 

 MURRAY GEOCONSULTING, LLC SPONSOR 

By: By: 

Print Name:  Kyle E. Murray, Ph.D. Print Name: 

Title: Principal Scientist  Title: 

Jim Curd, Jr. 

Vice Mayor 

Date: Jun 26, 2024  Date: 



Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2024 

Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 
Water Utilities Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approval of a contract with B-Town Construction to install flow meters at the Hillcrest and 
Nebraska lift stations. 
 
Attachments: 

Short Form Contract and Contractor Quotes 
 

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 
AMOUNT. 
 
One of the approved capital projects for this fiscal year, through the wastewater capital reserve 
fund, is to install flow meters at the Hillcrest and Nebraska lift stations.  The flow meter 
installation allows staff to manage the collection and treatment system more efficiently and 
facilitates a better understanding of inflow and infiltration during rain events, which will be used 
to prioritize improvements on both City and private side components of the wastewater collection 
system.   
 
Staff has reached out to four (4) local and regional contractors for quotes for this work and 
received the following quotes. 
 
 B-Town Construction (Bartlesville, OK)  $70,000 

Core Civil Construction (Skiatook, OK)  No bid 
 KSL Construction (Bartlesville, OK)   No bid 
 J Graham Construction (Coffeyville, KS)  No bid 
 
   
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
$420,000 is available for wastewater system improvements.  The low bid, $70,000 from B-Town 
Construction is within the available budget. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends awarding the contract to install flow meters at the Hillcrest and Nebraska lift 
stations to B-Town Construction in the amount of $70,000. 

6.e.viii.



                
 
 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
 SHORT FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

1 of 3 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made this 1st day of July, 2024, by and between B-Town 
Construction hereinafter called "Contractor", and the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, hereinafter 
called "City". 
 
 WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and the City, for considerations hereinafter named, 
agree as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK.  The project shall include all labor, equipment, materials and expense 

necessary to install concrete, vaults, drains, fittings and piping to facilitate the installation of 
flow meters, provided by the City, on sanitary sewer force mains located at the Hillcrest and 
Nebraska lift stations as depicted on plans dated June 2024.  Restoration of construction 
areas is included within the contract. 

 
2. TIME OF COMPLETION.  Installation and restoration shall be complete by November 29, 

2024.  
 
3. CONTRACT SUM.  The City will pay the Contractor for the performance of this contract 

based on the quoted lump sum price totaling ($70,000).  This contract amount may be 
amended by written agreement of the parties if additional work is added for repairs to the 
structure and footings. 

 
4. ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT.  Payment will be made by the City upon completion 

and acceptance of the work by the City Engineer, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 11 
and 14 of the General Conditions.  Partial payments will be allowed based on percent of 
work complete at the time of request. 

 
 GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The Contract includes the Agreement and its General 

Conditions, and any additional written directives from the Engineer.  The intent of these 
documents is to include all labor, materials, equipment, and services of every kind necessary 
for the proper execution of the work, and the terms and conditions of payment therefore.  
The documents are to be considered as one, and whatever is called for by any one of the 
documents shall be as binding as if called for by all. 

 
2. DEFINITIONS.  "City" shall refer to the City Engineer or other designated administrative 

official of the City of Bartlesville.  
 
3. MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, EMPLOYEES.  Except as otherwise noted, the Contractor 

shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, water, power, and other items necessary 
to complete the work.  Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new.  Workmanship 
and materials shall be of superior quality and acceptable to the City.  All workers shall be 
skilled in their trades. 

 



2 of 3 

            
 
 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
 SHORT FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

 

4. SURVEY, PERMITS AND REGULATIONS.  The City will furnish all surveys and layouts 
unless otherwise specified.  Easements and rights-of-ways will be secured and paid for by 
the City.  The Contractor shall comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the work 
and shall notify the City if the drawings or specifications are at variance therewith. 

 
5. PROTECTION OF WORK, PROPERTY AND PERSONS.  The Contractor shall 

adequately protect the work, adjacent property, and all persons in accordance with all laws 
and regulations.  The Contractor shall be completely responsible for any damage or injury 
due to his acts or negligence.  Damage caused by carelessness, neglect, negligence or that is 
outside the defined work area will be the Contractors sole responsibility to correct. 

 
6. ACCESS TO WORK.  The Contractor shall permit and facilitate observation of the work by 

the City or his agents at all times.  The contractor shall coordinate all required inspections 
with the appropriate code inspecting agent. 

 
7. CHANGES IN WORK.  The City may order changes in the work, with any adjustment of 

the Contract Sum by mutual agreement of the parties.  All such orders and adjustments shall 
be in writing.  Claims by the Contractor for extra cost shall be made in writing to the City 
before executing the work involved. 

 
8. CORRECTION OF WORK.  The Contractor shall correct any work determined by the City 

not to conform to the requirements of the contract.   
 
9. CITY'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT.  Should the Contractor fail to prosecute 

the work properly, or to perform any provision of the contract, the City, after seven (7) days' 
written notice to the Contractor may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, 
complete the work by such means as it sees fit.  If the unpaid balance of the contract price 
exceeds the expense of completing the work, such excess will be paid to the Contractor.  If 
such expense exceeds the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the City. 

 
10. CONTRACTOR'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT.  Should the work be stopped 

by any public authority for a period of thirty (30) days or more through no fault of the 
Contractor, or should the work be stopped through act or neglect of the City for a period of 
seven (7) days, then the Contractor, upon seven (7) days' written notice to the City, may stop 
work or terminate the contract, and recover from the City payment for all work executed, 
including reasonable profit and damages. 

 
11. PAYMENT.  Payment will be made based upon unit prices in the Proposal and the actual 

completed construction progress as determined by the Engineer. The making and acceptance 
of the payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the City, other than those arising 
from unsettled liens or from defective work appearing thereafter as provided in Paragraph 8, 
and of all claims by the Contractor except any previously made and still unsettled.  Payment 
may be withheld on account of defective work not remedied, liens filed, damage by the 
Contractor to others not adjusted, or failure to make materials or labor payments. 



3 of 3 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
SHORT FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

12. BONDS.  The Contractor shall furnish surety bonds to the City as indicated herein.
NO BONDS ARE REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT  

13. CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE.  The Contractor shall maintain such insurance as will
protect him and the City from claims under worker's compensation acts and other employee
benefits acts; from liability claims for damages because of bodily injury or death; and from
liability claims for damages to property which may arise from operations under this contract,
whether such operations be by himself, any subcontractor or vendor, or anyone directly or
indirectly employed by them.  Liability insurance shall be written for not less than
$1,000,000 in each case.  Certificates of such insurance shall be filed with the City prior to
beginning construction.  The Contractor shall provide certification to the City that all
insurance is effective for the duration of the work.

14. LIENS.  Payment shall not be made by the City until the Contractor has provided a
complete release of all lien able claims on the work included in this contract.

15. ENGINEER.  The City Engineer shall be the City's representative and shall have the
authority to stop or suspend the work as necessary.  All work shall be done to his
satisfaction.  Determination of final acceptance shall be by the Engineer.  He shall certify to
the City when payment under the contract is due and the amount to be paid. He shall make
final decision on all claims by the City and Contractor.

16. CLEANUP.  The Contractor shall keep the premises free from waste material and rubbish,
and at the completion of the work he shall remove from the premises all rubbish, debris, and
surplus materials, and leave the site in a condition acceptable to the Engineer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the day and
year first above written.

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 

Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor Contractor 

Attest 



QUOTATION

Quantity Item Description Unit Price Amount

QUOTE FOR HILLCREST & NEBRASKA

FLOW METERS

1.00 CHARGE FOR CHARGE FOR NEBRASKA FM 30,000.00 30,000.00

INCLUDES LABOR AND MATERIALS

1.00 CHARGE FOR CHARGE FOR HILLCREST FM 40,000.00 40,000.00

INCLUDES LABOR AND MATERIALS

Quote Number: m214 FLOW METERS

Quote Date: Jun 25, 2024

Sales Rep

Quoted To:

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

Good Thru

7/25/24

Customer ID Payment Terms

Page:

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE C.O.D.

1

TOTAL 70,000.00

Sales Tax

Subtotal 70,000.00

B-TOWN CONSTRUCTION LLC
MARTINBTOWNCONST@YAHOO.COM
5225 WOODLAND RD
BARTLESVILLE, OK 74006

Voice:
Fax:

918-814-6463







6.e.ix.

















Agenda Item ___ 
June 27, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approval of an amendment to the professional service contract with Guy Engineering Services, 
Inc. for design services on the Tuxedo Boulevard Bridges over the Caney River and 
overflow/pond Rehabilitation and Repair project. 
 
Attachments: 

Guy Engineering Services, Inc. Contract Supplement #3 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
One of the priority projects included on the voter approved 2020 General Obligation Bond is the 
Tuxedo Boulevard over the Caney River and overflow/pond Bridges Rehabilitation and Repair 
project.  The findings of the bridge inspection reports indicate need for rehabilitation of the 
bridges.  The rehabilitations varied on each bridge, but include deck repair on the overflow/pond 
and eastbound Caney River Bridges and deck replacement on the westbound Caney River 
bridges, approach pavement replacement, pier protection, abutment repairs, bank stabilization, 
and guardrail improvements.  The 2020 G.O. Bond allocated $1,535,000 for the design and 
rehabilitation of the bridges. 
 
The original design contract included completing final plans and specifications to meet the 
recommendations of the inspection report.  The original contract price for the work was 
$175,415.00.  Environmental coordination with the US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and 
the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) beyond that identified in the initial contract was 
determined necessary due to the findings of the preliminary review.  The required coordination 
will be addressed in phases.  This amendment will address the third phase of that coordination. 
 
An amendment to the contract was approved in April 2023 that included preplanning and direct 
coordination with the USFWS.  This coordination determined the compliance requirements for 
protection or mitigation of multiple potentially impacted species.  The amendment also provided 
Pre-Construction Notification to the USACE. 
 
As stated in the staff comments for the first amendment in April of 2023, a second amendment 
and potentially a third amendment would be required to create a proposal for studies required by 
the USFWS and the USACE and coordinate approval of those studies along with a plan to survey 
for the presence of mussels and relocate them.   That amendment was approved by Council in 
February, 2024. 
 
This third amendment compensates Guy Engineering and their subconsultants for performing the 
mussel survey and relocation plan that was prepared for, submitted to, and approved and required 
by the USFWS and the USACE.  This amendment also includes services during construction 

6.e.x.



including review of bridge submittals, answering bid and construction-related questions that 
arise, and generally being available to assist with important decisions that may arise during the 
construction phase of the project. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The original budget for this project was $1,535,000.  The work included in this amendment is 
required for USACE approval of the project.  The proposal by Guy Engineering Services, Inc. is 
within the planned budget for design and construction services. 
 
Guy Engineering Amendment #3……………………………...…. Total Amendment $58,275.00 

  Sub-consultant Stantec Inc. $49,775.00 
Guy Engineering efforts    $8,500.00 

 
 
Guy Engineering Amendment #2……………………………...….Total Amendment $13,053.73 

  Sub-consultant Stantec Inc. $12,431.73 
Guy Engineering efforts    $622.00 

 
 
Guy Engineering Amendment #1 (Approved April 3, 2023)...….Total Amendment $15,896.00 

  Sub-consultant Stantec Inc. $13,427.00 
Guy Engineering efforts    $2,469.00 

 
Total Engineering Contract to date 

Original Contract    $175,415.00 
Amendment #1     $15,896.00 
Amendment #2     $13,053.73 
Amendment #3     $58,275.00 

Current Design Total Cost    $262,639.73 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approval of this amendment to the professional service contract with Guy 
Engineering Services, Inc. in the amount of $58,275.00. 



 

 

6910 E 14th St ● Tulsa, OK 74112 
201 NW 63rd St, Ste 310 ● Oklahoma City, OK 73116 

www.GUYengr.com 

 

June 26, 2024 
 
Micah Siemers 
Director of Engineering 
City of Bartlesville 
401 S. Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
Re:  Local Bridges 5, 6, & 9 on Tuxedo Blvd over the Caney River and Overflow 

Request for Supplement #3 (GUY 1425) 
 
Dear Mr. Siemers: 

Guy Engineering and our sub-consultants (Stantec and NEO) respectfully request a supplement 
to perform the following services: 

 A site reconnaissance visit, mussel survey, and relocation as required by the U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service and Oklahoma Department of Wildlife Conservation. The detailed 
scope of work is attached (Stantec).  

 Provide support to the City during construction.  Scope includes reviewing bridge 
submittals and answering bid and construction questions. Work will only proceed at the 
request of the City (NEO & GUY). 

GUY respectfully requests our contract dated October 3, 2022, be supplemented as follows: 

Original Contract Value   $175,415.00 

Supplement 1     15,896.00 

Supplement 2      13,053.73 

Supplement 3   

 Environmental (Stantec) $49,775.00 Lump Sum 

Services during construction (NEO & GUY) 8,500.00 Hourly 

  58,275.00 

Revised Contract Value   $262,639.73 
 
If you have any questions, please contact our project manager, Todd Lipe, at 
Todd.Lipe@GUYengr.com or (539) 424-5080. 

Sincerely,      Approved:  

 
Rebecca Alvarez, PE     ________________________________ 
President      Name     Date 
 
       ________________________________ 
Encl       Title 



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
1114 N. Walker Avenue, Suite #4, Oklahoma City, OK 73103 

  
 
 

 
  

 

June 5, 2024 
  

Attention:  
Todd Lipe, Senior Project Manager 
Guy Engineering 
6910 E. 14th Street  
Tulsa, OK 74112 
 

Reference: Proposal for Mussel Survey & Relocation for the Bridge Rehabilitation of Tuxedo 
Boulevard over Caney River and Pond (NBI 14187, 21121, and 21083), Bartlesville, 
Washington County, Oklahoma 

Dear Mr. Lipe, 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (Stantec), is pleased to submit the attached proposal for the execution 
of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) approved mussel survey & relocation and associated USFWS 
and Oklahoma Department of Wildlife (ODWC) coordination to Guy Engineering (Guy) for the proposed 
bridge replacements in Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma.  

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or need any additional information at 918.850.0991 
or will.dillsaver@stantec.com.  

Regards, 

 

 

Will Dillsaver, Project Manager | Senior Ecologist 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

  



19 January 2024 
Page 2 of 3  

Reference: Bridge Rehabilitation for Tuxedo Boulevard over Caney River and Pond 

 
 

 

Project Understanding 
We understand that this project involves proposed rehabilitation of three bridges (NBI 14187, 21121, and 
21083) carrying Tuxedo Boulevard over the Caney River and a pond in Bartlesville, Oklahoma. Stantec 
understands that Guy is proposing on engineering services to the city, and that final design plans have not 
yet been completed. Currently the project area is approximately 0.25 miles long and has a typical width of 
approximately 172 feet (5.22 acres). 

Stantec has conducted environmental studies and USFWS and ODWC coordination under previous 
contracts. Based on current plans and previously conducted studies and coordination, the proposed project 
will require a mussel survey and relocation effort to minimize impacts to federally listed mussel species. The 
scope below has been drafted for the execution of the USFWS approved mussel survey & relocation. The 
survey and relocation effort will be conducted as per the study/relocation plan approved by the USFWS and 
ODWC. 

Scope of Services 
Mussel Survey and Relocation  

This task includes a mussel survey and relocation, including a site recon visit and direct coordination with the 
USFWS and ODWC for plan execution. The survey plan approved by the USFWS and ODWC is attached 
below. A site visit will be conducted to assess relocation suitability as outlined in the survey protocols as well 
as identify the viability of relocation site(s). This task will be managed by a USFWS Section 10 permit holder 
for Threatened & Endangered freshwater mussel species located in Oklahoma. The mussel survey and 
relocation effort included in this task will be conducted for a cost of $49,775 to be billed as a lump sum task.   

Assumptions/Exclusions 

• This scope assumes that the previous environmental studies conducted by Stantec for this project 
will be used to conduct the work outlined in this scope of services. If any additional investigations, 
including site visits are required, they may be provided as an additional service under a separate 
agreement, if needed. 

• This scope assumes that the guidance documents specifically cited and approved by the USFWS 
and ODWC will be used to conduct the work outlined in this scope of services. If new guidance is 
released by any agency with jurisdiction over the proposed project, it may be necessary to amend 
this scope of services to account for updated guidance. Stantec reserves the right to negotiate a new 
scope of services with the Client pending any regulatory change affecting this scope of services.  

• Assumes all meetings are held over the phone or on Teams or a similar conference program.  

Compensation 

Stantec will endeavour to follow a mutually agreed upon project schedule which will be discussed with the 
Client upon Notice to Proceed. Task NTP will be authorized via email prior to commencing of work.  

• $49,775 Task 1 – Recon site assessment & Mussel Survey/Relocation 

Stantec greatly appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal. Please feel free to contact me at 
918.850.0991 or will.dillsaver@stantec.com if you have any questions.  

mailto:will.dillsaver@stantec.com


19 January 2024 
Page 3 of 3  

Reference: Bridge Rehabilitation for Tuxedo Boulevard over Caney River and Pond 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Will Dillsaver 
Project Manager | Senior Ecologist 
Phone:  405-724-8505 
Fax:  512-338-2225 
will.dillsaver@stantec.com 

 
  

 

By signing this proposal, Guy Engineering Services authorizes Stantec to proceed with the services 
herein described and the work will be conducted per the terms set forth in the Master Services 
Agreement executed February 19th, 2023. 

This proposal is accepted and agreed on the Day day of Month, Year. 

 

Per: Guy Engineering 

   

 

Enter Name & Title 

Print Name & Title  Signature 

 

Attachment:  
c. C.C. 
 



Freshwater Mussel Survey & Relocation Plan  
Tuxedo Boulevard at Caney River 

Washington County, Oklahoma 
 

Prepared by: 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
1114 N. Walker Avenue, Suite 4 
Oklahoma City OK 73103-2623   

 
March 13, 2024 

 
 

1) A description of the project and associated aquatic/instream activities with sufficient 
detail for department staff to evaluate the risk to aquatic resources. 
 

The City of Bartlesville is proposing the rehabilitation of three bridges (NBI #14187, #21083, 
and #21121) along a 0.24-mile stretch of Tuxedo Boulevard. Two of the bridges (NBI #14187 
and #21121) are parallel spans over the Caney River. The third bridge spans an isolated open 
waterbody that may be a relic channel of the Caney River. Survey and relocation are proposed 
for the work associated with rehabilitation of the two parallel spans over the Caney River, which 
will require reshaping of the stream channel’s bank, the installation of filter blanket and riprap 
bank stabilization, replacement of the bridge decks, and rehabilitation of other bridge 
components. The Area of Direct Impact (ADI) consists of the wetted stream bed directly under 
the bridge structures, where a risk of harm to aquatic resources exists in the form of falling 
materials from rehabilitation activities.  
 
The survey area will include the ADI, a 50-meter upstream buffer (USB), a 100-meter 
downstream buffer (DSB). There is no proposed lateral buffer (LB) because the ADI is bank-to-
bank (Figure 2). The typical channel width within the survey area is 75-90 feet, and the survey 
area encompasses approximately 0.95 acres A proposed relocation site, at least 100 meters 
upstream from the ADI, is depicted on Figure 2; and will be refined, if necessary, based on 
habitat suitability comparable to habitat within the survey area.  
 
To prevent impacts to native freshwater mussels (Unionidae) that could potentially be present, 
Stantec plans to search for and relocate any native mussels per the methodology included in this 
plan.  
 

2) A computer generated map showing the project location and the relocation site, 
including the county, GPS coordinates, and the Oklahoma Department of 
Environmental Quality (ODEQ) waterbody identification number. 
 

A map of the survey area and the proposed relocation site is shown in the attached Figure 2.   
 
Coordinates for the centroid of the bridge sites are 36.756645 °N, -95.956604 °W. 
Coordinates for the relocation site are 36.757831°N, -95.959465°W. 
  



The project site occurs in the Caney River, ODEQ waterbody identification number 
OK121400020010_00. 
 

3) Expected start dates of the project and the survey/relocation.  
 

The survey and relocation are expected to be done between July and September 2024 as flow and 
temperature conditions allow.  
 

4) Identify any federally threatened or endangered species that may occur. Explain 
what methods will be used to protect these species. If the project area contains any 
state or federally listed freshwater mussels, a mussel survey may be necessary prior 
to approval of the survey plan.  

According to the Oklahoma Natural Heritage Inventory (ONHI), there are no known occurrences 
of federally listed freshwater mussel species within the vicinity of the survey area.  A U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service (USFWS) malacologist identified the western fanshell (Cyprogenia aberti) 
as potential occurring within the Caney River. Additionally, the USFWS Information for 
Planning and Consultation (IPaC) species list for the project indicated the potential presence of 
rabbitsfoot (Theliderma cylindrica) within the survey area. According to the Oklahoma 
Biodiversity Information System, the nearest known occurrences of the federally threatened 
freshwater mussel species, western fanshell and rabbitsfoot, are approximately 23 miles 
northeast of the survey area, within the Verdigris River. The Caney River within the survey area 
would likely be considered a Group 1 stream, according to the Texas Freshwater Mussel Survey 
Protocol dated October 2021, based on the fact that it is a medium-sized stream reach which may 
be inhabited by federally listed freshwater mussel species. Non-listed mussels are known or 
anticipated to occur, but presence or diversity has not been confirmed. A detail of freshwater 
mussel species which may potentially be present within the survey area can be found at the 
Oklahoma Department of Wildlife Conservation (ODWC) website, The Freshwater Mussels of 
Oklahoma (wildlifedepartment.com).  
 
The table below includes a list of mussels that may occur in Caney River. 

Scientific Name Common Name 
Amblema plicata Threeridge 
Cyprogenia aberti* Western Fanshell 
Fusconaia flava Wabash Pigtoe 
Lampsilis cardium Plain Pocketbook 
Lampsils rafinesqueana Neosho Mucket 
Lampsilis teres Yellow Sandshell 
Lasmigona complanate White Heelsplitter 
Leptodea fragilis Fragile Papershell 
Ligunia recta Black Sandshell 
Ligumia subrostrate Pondmussel 
Megalonaias nervosa Washboard 
Obliquaria reflexa Threehorn Wartyback 
Pleurobema sintoxia Pyramid Pigtoe 

https://www.wildlifedepartment.com/magazine/freshwatermussels/index.html
https://www.wildlifedepartment.com/magazine/freshwatermussels/index.html


Scientific Name Common Name 
Potamilus ohiensis Pink Papershell 
Potamilus purpuratus Bleufer 
Pyganodon grandis Giant Floater 
Theliderma cylindrica* Rabbitsfoot 
Quadrula metanvera Monkeyface 
Quadrula nodulata Wartyback 
Quadrula pustulosa Pimpleback 
Quadrula quadrula Mapleleaf 
Toxolasma parvum Lilliput 
Tritogonia verrucosa Pistolgrip 
Truncilla donaciformis Fawnsfoot 
Truncilla truncata Deertoe 
Uniomerus tetralasmus Pondhorn 
Utterbackia imbecillis Paper Pondshell 
*Denotes listed species with the potential presence 
within the study area. 

 
5) List all shellfish that may become stranded due to the operation.  Explain what 

methods will be used to protect these shellfish including freshwater mussels (See 
Attachment 2 for Freshwater Fish and Shellfish Handling Protocols).   

There are no plans to dewater the project area as part of this proposed operation or survey.  
 

6) List all known exotic and invasive species in the project area. Describe 
decontamination procedures for preventing the spread of exotic and invasive 
species. See link below for more information: Invertebrates | Oklahoma Department of 
Wildlife Conservation (wildlifedepartment.com) 

 
Harris Mud Crab (Rhithropanopeus harrisi) may occur at this location. Invasive mussel species 
such as zebra mussels (Dreissena polymorpha) continue to expand their range in Oklahoma and 
may occur at this location. 
 
Field staff will review and apply guidance from the Oklahoma Aquatic Nuisance Species 
Program to prevent spread of exotic species. All equipment (i.e., boots, buckets, mesh bags, etc.) 
and vehicles will be inspected, and any plant material, mud, or other debris will be removed 
before leaving the project site, as well as a pre-survey inspection of all equipment to prevent the 
introduction of any exotic species.  Also, all water from receptacles will be drained before 
leaving the survey area, and all equipment will be allowed to dry completely before use in 
another water body. 
 
If zebra mussels, Harris mud crabs, or other aquatic nuisance species are encountered at the 
project location, ODWC will be notified via the online report tool. The report tool can be 
accessed at Aquatic Nuisance Species | Oklahoma Department of Wildlife Conservation 
(wildlifedepartment.com). 

https://www.wildlifedepartment.com/fishing/ans/invetebrates
https://www.wildlifedepartment.com/fishing/ans/invetebrates
https://www.wildlifedepartment.com/fishing/ans
https://www.wildlifedepartment.com/fishing/ans


 
Also, if zebra mussels are encountered, field staff will implement the following protective 
measures to prevent the further spread of zebra mussels: 
 

(1) Spray/rinse all equipment and vehicles, using hot and/or high-pressure water as soon 
as possible after leaving the site,  

(2) Drain all water from receptacles before leaving the area, and 
(3) Allow all equipment to dry completely before use in another water body. 

 
 

7) Methods of collecting and relocating aquatic resources, including the types and sizes 
of containers used, the mode of transportation, and best management practices 
(BMPs) to protect aquatic resources. Provide an estimate of the time expected to 
complete the collection and relocation. 
 

This mussel survey plan is requesting authorization of a Phase 1 cell survey of the designated 
survey area and a Phase 2 multiple pass depletion survey if triggers are met. Data to be collected 
during the survey will include; substrate type and percentage, number and species of mussels 
collected, size measurements of first 100 individuals of each species.  
 
Phase 1: 
A phase 1 cell survey would be conducted by dividing the survey area into a series of cells in 
which each cell is surveyed, and data recorded by cell. Maximum acceptable cell size is 100 m2. 
Minimum search effort shall be 0.5 min/m2 for cells containing homogenous substrates 
consisting of bedrock, silt, and/or sand, or 0.75 min/m2 for cells containing heterogenous 
substrates consisting of mixtures of silt, sand, gravel, cobble, boulder, and/or bedrock as 
prescribed by cell substrates. Waters depths greater than 2-ft are not planned to be surveyed in 
order to reduce risk of surveyors becoming injured or trapped. Additionally, surveyors will not 
incorporate self-contained underwater breathing apparatus (SCUBA) for this survey, as there is a 
high risk of injury and becoming trapped due to poor visibility and the presence of woody debris 
under and around the bridge area. Areas that are greater than 2-ft within the survey area will be 
identified and excluded at the time of the survey. 
 
Phase 2: 
A phase 2 survey will be conducted in cells where one of the following triggers are met: 

 One of the federally listed mussel species are observed within the cell. 
 Mussel density of greater than or equal to 0.5 mussels/m2 are observed in a 

cell. 
 Observation of at least two species, live or fresh dead (still containing soft 

tissue).  

The phase 2 survey will consist of a multiple pass depletion effort within each cell. A minimum 
of two passes (0.5 min/m2 first pass, 0.5 minutes/m2 second pass), shall be made through each 
cell until less than 10 percent of the original number of live common mussels collected are 
recovered on the final pass. If a listed species is found during the final pass of a cell, an 
additional pass will be completed in that cell or transect regardless of the percentage threshold 
achieved during that pass. Additional passes will only be required in cells that have not reached 



the necessary threshold or where listed species were collected. Other cells that have met the 
threshold will require no further effort. 
 
Relocation Protocol: 
If no federally listed mussels are collected during the Phase 1 survey, the surveyor will relocate 
the live common mussels collected within the survey area without the requirement to complete 
the multiple-pass depletion method described above. If federally listed species are collected, the 
Stantec malacologist will consult any USFWS and/or ODWC staff onsite before proceeding with 
relocation efforts. The relocation of these mussels must adhere to the relocation site selection 
methods, processing and data-entry procedures, and reporting requirements presented within the 
Texas Mussel Survey Protocol, including the following:  
 
Relocation sites shall be preferably located at least 100 m upstream of the proposed impact area 
in a location of equal or better habitat that is inhabited by a comparable mussel assemblage. If it 
is known during the relocation planning stages that a suitable site is not within the vicinity of the 
proposed project due to upstream or downstream habitat disturbances. When identifying a 
potential relocation site, one 15 min qualitative survey shall be completed to identify habitats 
occupied in similar or greater densities by similar species to those collected during the salvage. If 
the initially surveyed area does not contain comparable habitat or a similar resident mussel 
fauna, additional 15 min qualitative surveys will be completed until an appropriate relocation site 
is found. The relocation area shall be equal or larger in size to the salvage area in order to avoid 
overcrowding of the relocation site. All observations of resident mussels are to be reported in the 
survey report. If no sites with comparable mussel assemblages can be located within the vicinity 
of the salvage site, identification of a suitable relocation site will be left to the best professional 
judgement of the permitted mussel surveyor on-site and the situation should be explained in the 
final relocation report. 
 

8) Describe how the receiving waters will be protective of aquatic life (i.e., sufficient 
dissolved oxygen levels, water body size and flow, and similar habitat as the source 
water). 

 
The proposed relocation site will be in Caney River approximately ~260 meters upstream of the 
project site. Therefore, it is presumed that ambient water quality will be similar between the 
survey and relocation areas. Substrates will be compared between the project and the relocation 
sites to ensure, to the extent possible, mussels are placed in habitat like that which they are 
removed from. Selecting the specific relocation site after locating mussels will ensure relocation 
site habitats are like habitats at the project site.   
 

9) Describe how dead fish and shellfish, as well as exotic and invasive species, will be 
disposed of and documented. Documentation should include no less than the species 
and number of individuals found dead, or disposed of, including the lengths (inches) 
of all fish for both native and non-native species. 

  



No fish will be collected as part of this relocation activity.  A record will be kept of all live 
unionids collected from the removal area.  There are no non-native unionids known to occur in 
the project area.  Other non-native bivalves such as zebra mussels and Corbicula spp. 
(Corbiculidae) may occur at this location but will not be removed from the stream during 
relocation activities.  Any shell material from native unionids that is found will be left in the 
river where it was retrieved or retained for educational purposes.  

 
10) Identify best management practices (BMPs) to be used to prevent or minimize the 

risk of transporting any species, including aquatic invasive species (AIS) to new 
locations on equipment, boats, trailers, and vehicles. These BMPs should also ensure 
compliance with regulations that prohibit the possession and transport of certain 
AIS species.  

 
General BMPs 
 
DURING surveys, introductions, and relocations, water will not be transferred from one site to 
another. 
 
AFTER work in the water is complete: 
 
CLEAN: Mud, plant fragments, and other debris will be removed from all equipment before 
leaving the site—this includes nets, mesh bags, buckets, boot tread, waders, boats, trailers, 
vehicles, and ANY other equipment used in or adjacent to the water. Before leaving the site, 
equipment that may harbor plant fragments (e.g., boot tread) will be rinsed using a gallon jug of 
water and a scrub brush, scraper, or other cleaning tools. Additional cleaning/disinfectant 
measures may include a carwash with a high-pressure spray to help clean boats, trailers, vehicles, 
and equipment.  
 
DRAIN: All water from boats, fish hauling units, buckets, or other receptacles will be drained at 
a location where the water will not drain into any water body. 
 
DRY: All equipment will be allowed to dry completely before use in another water body. 
 
 
  



Figure 1. Tuxedo Boulevard at Caney River project limits and location in Washington County 
Texas.   
 

 
 
  



 
Figure 2.  Project footprint and associated buffer (yellow), proposed survey areas (blue), and 
Area of Direct Impact (ADI) (red).  The proposed relocation site is shown as a point upstream of 
the project. 
 

 



GUY ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC. 
Hourly Rates 
July 1, 2024 

 
  

Personnel 
Classification 

 
Hourly Rate 

Principal Engineer 491.16 

Sr PE II 268.98 

Sr PE I 241.40 

PE II 201.95 

PE I 162.12 

Engineer Intern II 119.56 

Engineer Intern I 112.70 

Tech III 147.63 

Tech II 122.85 

Tech I 84.60 

Right-of-Way Agent III 159.39 

Right-of-Way Agent II 126.81 

Right-of-Way Agent I 110.50 

Senior Surveyor 181.13 

Utilities Manager 207.38 

Utilities Coordinator II 124.88 

Utilities Coordinator I 97.83 

Utilities Inspector 124.08 

Admin III 228.13 

Admin II 174.30 

Admin I 111.41 

SUE Mob/Demob 150.00 

SUE Locate 200.00 

SUE Office 170.00 

Mileage & Travel Exp. (Lodging, Per Diem) At current 
government rate 

  
 
 
 
 
 



NEO DESIGN LLC 
Hourly Rates 
July 1, 2024 

   
Personnel 

Classification 
  

Hourly Rate 
Principal Engineer 158.08 

Sr. Bridge Engineer 138.32 

Bridge Engineer 118.56 

Project Engineer/Sr. Designer 108.68 

Engineer 98.80 

Designer 88.92 

Technician 79.04 

Admin 59.28 
Intern 49.40 

Mileage & Travel Exp. (Lodging, Per Diem) At current 
government rate 

 



6.e.xi.





working a 2,145 annual schedule" effective July I, 2024. 
3. Article 15, Section 5 will be adjusted to state that "the City agrees to pay to each

officer that works a 2,080 annual schedule who has completed studies at accredited
universities or colleges in accordance with the following schedule:
60 hours $0.23 per hour 
Associates Degree $0.43 per hour 
Bachelor's Degree $0.87 per hour 
Master's Degree $1.01 per hour 

"Additionally, the City agrees to pay to each officer that works a 2,145 annual 
schedule who has completed studies at accredited universities or colleges in 
accordance with the following schedule: 
60 hours $0.22 per hour 
Associates Degree $0.42 per hour 
Bachelor's Degree $0.84 per hour 
Master's Degree $0.98 per hour 

4. The longevity scale which is represented in Appendix II of the contract for fiscal
years 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 will be adjusted to hereby change the monthly
amounts to hourly effective July I, 2024 for employees working a 2,080 annual
schedule.

5. Appendix Ill will be added to include a longevity scale for fiscal year 2024-2025 for
employees working a 2, 145 annual schedule to hereby reflect hourly rates.

APPROVED by the parties hereto this I'' day of July, 2024. 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 

BY: ___________ _ 
JIM CURD, JR., VICE MAYOR 

FOP LODGE 117 







6.e.xii.











6.e.xiii.
July 1, 2024







. .., 

(SEAL) 

Attest: 

City Clerk 

DATED this 18 day of June, 2024 

WILSON PSYCHOLOGICAL 
AS SOCIA TES, PLLC 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 

By: _________ _ 
Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor 

























  6.e.xiv.







6.e.xv.







1 Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and within schools. HR 10/23 100%

2
Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate potential vacation 
buyback program.

HR 10/23 100%

3 Implement a job swap program for employees. HR 10/23 100%
4 Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly. HR 07/24 100%

5
Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home program for 
applicable employees.

HR 04/24 100%

1 Develop a committee to research best practices and accreditation programs. Admin 10/23 100% Committee has met and is gathering data.

2
Develop and implement a performance and reward-based evaluation process for 
general employees by July 1, 2023 with intent to negotiate this process for 
uniformed groups in the future.

HR 07/23 100%

3
Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to determine how we 
can integrate these systems into our operating departments.

IT 04/24 75% Reevaluating options for software.

4
Revise and update our website using newest technologies and integrations to 
improve citizen satisfaction and e-gov capabilities.

CCO 10/24 60%

1
Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and departmental 
achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of report to be circulated in utility bill. 

Admin 09/24 50%
Changed the date to match up with our fiscal 
year.  Original completion date was 4/24.

2
Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen feedback and requests for all 
City departments. Individual departments may also be surveyed individually as part 
of a larger survey plan.

Admin 04/24 50%
Meeting with consultant to discuss options first 
week of July.

3
Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their department and the City as 
an overall employer by July 1, 2023.

HR 07/23 100%

4
Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City services as 
appropriate.

Admin 10/23 100%

5
Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow subscription base by 
10%.

CCO 04/24 100%

1 Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to:
a Formal debt policy based on GFOA authoritative guidance. A&F 10/23 100%

BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - JUNE 2024

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety programs to improve workplace culture and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational excellence, developing a performance and reward-based evaluation process, 

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, community survey, and employee survey.

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a comprehensive Council handbook.

1 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - JUNE 2024

b
Formal policy requiring that utility rate studies be conducted at least every 5 years 
and requiring Council to utilize periodic rate studies to adopt multiyear rate plans. 

A&F 10/23 100%

c
Formal capital planning policy requiring that a 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
be prepared by Staff and adopted by the City Council concurrently with the budget 
every year. 

A&F 10/23 100%

2
Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue and expenditures for 
major operating funds to assist the Council and Staff in better planning for the 
future. 

A&F 07/25 35%
Will contact Crawford & Assoc.  If they are 
unable to provide service, then implementation 
may be delayed.

3
City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help to guide current and 
future City Councils. City Manager will work with Mayor to schedule a Council 
workshop to discuss this item within one year of adoption of Strategic Plan. 

Admin 04/24 100%

1

The intent of the asset management program is to compile age, material, condition, 
and service life of the City’s infrastructure (facilities, airport, streets, storm drain, 
wastewater, water, signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS software to aid in planning 
improvement priority and capital needs.

Eng

a
Staff will determine what items need to be tracked, what data exists, and what data 
needs to be collected

Eng 10/23 95% Pending budget effective date of July 1.

b Select consultant to collect and populate data into ESRI. Eng
i Facilities, streets, storm drains, wastewater and water Eng 10/24 25%
ii Signs and signals Eng 10/25 50%

1 Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). Eng
a Complete PCI update currently under contract. Eng 04/23 100%

b
Once complete, develop several PCI score scenarios (maintain existing, desired PCI in 
5 years and desired PCI in 10 years) with capital investment requirements – 6 
months.

Eng 06/23 100%

1
Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range plans utilizing accepted 
best practices (i.e. transportation, storm drainage, utilities, etc.). 

Comm Dev

a Staff will develop an RFP to select a consultant. Comm Dev 06/23 100%

b Present recommendations to the Council Comm Dev 10/24 5%
Start date of project was delayed, so end date 
has been adjusted accordingly.

EFFECTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK
Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

ECONOMIC VITALITY
Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes align with best practices and reflect the character of our community.

2 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - JUNE 2024

2
Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes which regulate private 
development and land use following the updated comprehensive land use plan. 

Comm Dev 06/25 0%

1
Identify economic development partners and assign City employee to act as 
economic development liaison. Liaison shall act as conduit between economic 
development partners, developer, and City departments. 

Admin 06/23 100%

2
Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to determine how best 
to support their efforts and to define the expectations for all parties.

Admin 12/23 100%

3 Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic development partners. Admin 100%

1 Identify community partners who employ and recruit young professionals. Admin 09/23 100%

2
Engage with community partners to learn how the City can attract young 
professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 75% Scheduling meeting with COP/P66 leadership

3
Examine ways to make the community more enticing for businesses and restaurants 
that attract young professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 0%

4
Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their efforts and 
accomplishments 

Admin 01/24 100%

1 Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse cultures in our community. Library 01/24 100%

a Use this group to support/identify cultural needs that are unmet.
b Partner/support this group for an annual event.

2 Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities, properties, venues, etc.) Library 01/25 0%

1
As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other plans identified in 
Economic Vitality, update the Parks Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle options and 
parks and recreation systems are meeting the needs of the public.

Comm Dev 10/24 25% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

2
Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing assets and plans such as 
bicycle plan.

CD/S&T 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

a Review, evaluate, and update the Bicycle Plan CD/S&T 10/24 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY CHARACTER
Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and transportation systems.

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development.

3 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - JUNE 2024

1
Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community spaces, including 
destruction or defacement of public restrooms, violations of park curfews, etc.

PW/PD

a
Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks combined with 
motion and smoke detectors

Pub Works 04/24 95% 9 of 10 bathrooms installed

b Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems PD 04/24 100%

i
Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism, arson, 
trespassing, etc.

PD 04/24 100%

2
Coordinate citizen volunteer efforts to supplement our maintenance efforts and to 
improve the appearance of our City. These could include periodic clean up days, 
adopt a mile programs, adopt a path programs, etc. 

CD/PW 07/23 100% KBB established.

a Staff to list and prioritize possible programs. CD/PW 01/24 25%
b Adopt formal policy for selected program(s). CD/PW 04/24 25%
c Advertise, promote, operate, and publicly report on the success of this program. CD/PW 10/24 25%

3 Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program PD 10/23 100%
4 Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City App Comm Dev 04/24 100%
5 Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks and rights-of-way. Pub Works 07/23 100%

1 Child Care: Admin

a Collaborate with local groups to help find solutions to the local child care shortage. Admin 04/24 100%
New task force established and meeting 
regularly.

b
Help advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to new 
facilities.

Admin 80% Review of local regulations under way.

2 Housing: Comm Dev

a
Evaluate local housing supply and demand to determine gaps in local housing stock 
by price level.

Comm Dev 04/24 100%

3 Homelessness: PD

a
Collaborate with local groups seeking to reduce homelessness including “United 
Way” and “B the Light”.

Admin/CD 04/24 100%
Collaboration with "B the Light" will continue.  
Their construction currently delayed by ODEQ.

b
Review existing laws and enforcement policies and retrain police officers to better 
handle crimes committed by the homeless.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

c
Utilize the mental health team data from PD to better understand our homeless 
population, how many homeless are in Bartlesville, and why they are here.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential solution that address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others 
EMERGING ISSUES

4 of 4



Agenda Item ___ 
June 20, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the eleven months ending May 31, 2024.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for May 31, 2024 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for May 2024; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for May 31, 2024. 

6.g.i.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Quinn Schipper
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Eleven Months Ended May 31, 2024

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

88.0%
90.0%
92.0%
94.0%
96.0%
98.0%
100.0%
102.0%
104.0%
106.0%

 -
 2,000,000
 4,000,000
 6,000,000
 8,000,000

 10,000,000
 12,000,000
 14,000,000
 16,000,000
 18,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

88.0%

90.0%

92.0%

94.0%

96.0%

98.0%

100.0%

102.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

105.0%

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

88.0%
89.0%
90.0%
91.0%
92.0%
93.0%
94.0%
95.0%
96.0%
97.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 17,643,955$  16,173,625$  16,629,133$  -$                   16,629,133$  94.2% 16,663,460$  92.0%
Use Tax 2,500,000       2,291,667       4,482,543       -                     4,482,543       179.3% 1,155,263       74.5%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,582,000       1,450,167       1,424,076       -                     1,424,076       90.0% 1,492,990       91.8%
Licenses and Permits 256,700          235,308          250,841          -                     250,841          97.7% 245,134          95.3%
Intergovernmental 700,400          642,033          655,445          -                     655,445          93.6% 658,661          92.4%
Charges for Services 478,800          438,900          535,202          -                     535,202          111.8% 563,848          94.3%
Court Costs 160,000          146,667          175,315          -                     175,315          109.6% 174,995          92.0%
Police/Traffic Fines 460,000          421,667          319,646          -                     319,646          69.5% 376,257          92.8%
Parking Fines 68,200            62,517            47,085            -                     47,085            69.0% 46,060            96.1%
Other Fines 80,400            73,700            58,791            -                     58,791            73.1% 64,336            91.6%
Investment Income 150,000          137,500          2,788,917       -                     2,788,917       1859.3% 863,886          90.1%
Miscellaneous Income 910,700          834,808          1,106,595       -                     1,106,595       121.5% 734,554          97.5%
Transfers In 6,561,228       6,014,459       6,014,460       -                     6,014,460       91.7% 8,406,697       91.7%

Total 31,552,383$  28,923,018$  34,488,049$  -$                   34,488,049$  109.3% 31,446,140$  91.3%

Expenditures:
General Government 9,151,305$     8,388,696$     7,831,745$     51,819$        7,883,564$     86.1% 7,315,691$     89.2%
Public Safety 16,925,651     15,515,180     15,618,303     79,597          15,697,900     92.7% 13,894,976     89.9%
Street 2,103,511       1,928,218       1,653,864       21,385          1,675,249       79.6% 1,620,370       90.1%
Culture and Recreation 3,790,180       3,474,332       3,138,888       (6,742)           3,132,146       82.6% 2,894,048       88.8%
Transfers Out 4,189,369       3,840,255       3,840,012       -                     3,840,012       91.7% 3,676,852       91.7%
Reserves 1,194,800       1,095,233       -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 37,354,816$  34,241,914$  32,082,812$  146,059$      32,228,871$  86.3% 29,401,937$  89.9%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 6,559,526$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 2,405,237       

Ending Fund Balance 8,964,763$    

92% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,007,344$     5,506,732$     5,605,216$  -$                   5,605,216$     93.3% 5,372,831$     107.8%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. 55,797             ######
Debt Proceeds -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             27,500             136,001        -                      136,001          453.3% 176,258          865.8%

Total 6,037,344$    5,534,232$    5,741,217$  -$                   5,741,217$    95.1% 5,604,886$    112.0%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,965,385$     2,718,270$     2,951,850$  (16,251)$       2,935,599$     99.0% 2,692,135$     100.9%
Wastewater Maint 861,009          789,258          767,504        (95)                 767,409          89.1% 640,940          98.1%
BMA Expenses 27,735             25,424             27,730          -                      27,730             100.0% 27,870             N.A.
Transfers Out 1,646,975       1,509,727       1,509,728     -                      1,509,728       91.7% 1,505,694       104.6%
Reserves 88,790             81,391             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 5,589,894$    5,124,070$    5,256,812$  (16,346)$      5,240,466$    93.7% 4,866,639$    102.2%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,904,457$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 484,405        

Ending Fund Balance 3,388,862$  

92% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  10,166,878$  9,636,717$     -$                    9,636,717$     86.9% 10,606,444$  100.9%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. 77,622            1390.6%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       749,416          -                       749,416          N.A. 6,409               634.6%

Total 11,091,140$  10,166,878$  10,386,133$  -$                    10,386,133$  93.6% 10,690,475$  101.6%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 3,930,908$     3,603,332$     3,031,013$     118,358$       3,149,371$     80.1% 3,269,413$     117.6%
Water Administration 403,611          369,977          368,211          980                 369,191          91.5% 353,796          104.8%
Water Distribution 2,251,525       2,063,898       1,658,852       (27,838)          1,631,014       72.4% 1,613,626       119.6%
BMA Expenses 3,826,024       3,507,189       3,156,192       (119,080)        3,037,112       79.4% 4,284,447       143.7%
Transfers Out 2,585,280       2,369,840       2,369,841       -                       2,369,841       91.7% 2,355,268       105.2%
Reserves 294,520          269,977          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 13,291,868$  12,184,213$  10,584,109$  (27,580)$        10,556,529$  79.4% 11,876,550$  122.6%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,243,671$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (197,976)         

Ending Fund Balance 7,045,695$    

92% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,055,185$     5,550,586$     5,676,059$       -$                   5,676,059$     93.7% 5,288,730$     91.5%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 173,239          45,669            128,288             -                     128,288          74.1% 145,902          87.7%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,228,424$    5,596,255$    5,804,347$       -$                   5,804,347$    93.2% 5,434,632$    91.4%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,564,131$     3,267,120$     2,984,631$       81,156$        3,065,787$     86.0% 3,053,821$     93.5%
Transfers Out 2,649,730       2,428,919       2,428,920         -                     2,428,920       91.7% 2,426,826       91.7%
Reserves 134,997          123,747          -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,348,858$    5,819,786$    5,413,551$       81,156$        5,494,707$    86.5% 5,480,647$    92.7%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 322,482$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 390,796             

Ending Fund Balance 713,278$          

92% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,902,083     1,750,528    92%
E-911 Fund 1,095,403     1,085,493    99%
Special Library Fund 123,970        186,194       150%
Special Museum Fund -                     46,285          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund -                     75,583          N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     -                    N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 55,000          87,808          160%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 25,000          74,635          299%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                    N/A
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     7,185            N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     -                    N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,600            2,200            85%

Debt Service Fund 4,818,069     4,929,411    102%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,603,280     3,573,232    99%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     41,200          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     -                    N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          47,880          100%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     4,816            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     219,087       N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     6,900,000    100%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 663,654        651,817       98%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 72,245          66,225          92%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,205          86,355          92%
Municipal Airport Operating 585,975        687,505       117%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 93,460          93,338          100%
Health Insurance Fund 4,666,526     4,865,941    104%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          72,004          96%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,291,774     1,184,128    92%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 6,998,023     7,262,303    104%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     -                    N/A

92% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,416,131     1,872,793    35%
E-911 Fund 1,226,020     1,049,089    86%
Special Library Fund 220,970        185,096        84%
Special Museum Fund 51,500           29,809          58%
Municipal Airport Fund 28,508           435               2%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 382,568        18,405          5%
Restricted Revenue Fund 350,441        114,091        33%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 65,940           56,458          86%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                     N/A
ARPA 1,000,000     916,667        92%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 29,599           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 12,303           200               2%

Debt Service Fund 4,820,069     4,748,269    99%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,164,456     1,444,933    23%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 27,542           (2,160)           -8%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 554,842        23,508          4%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 170,362        5,200            3%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,577           7,447            13%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     (520)              N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 28,659           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 326,564        -                     0%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 341,460        -                     0%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 521,244        -                     0%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 4,880,960     1,980,004    41%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     284,559        4%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 665,922        604,079        91%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 79,562           45,286          57%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,230           53,343          57%
Municipal Airport Operating 670,036        587,347        88%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        146,058        34%
Health Insurance Fund 4,987,780     4,909,934    98%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 443,559        59,893          14%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 12,390,050   4,669,895    38%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 7,791             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

92% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,705,288                 (122,265)      3,583,023     
E-911 Fund 214,997                    36,404          251,401        
Special Library Fund 290,970                    (4,533)           286,437        
Special Museum Fund 139,059                    16,476          155,535        
Municipal Airport Fund 80,702                       47,910          128,612        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 463,144                    (16,514)         446,630        
Restricted Revenue Fund 409,319                    (26,545)         382,774        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 45,891                       20,542          66,433           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 1,762,952                 (916,667)      846,285        
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619                         7,185            14,804           
Neighborhood Park Fund 60,222                       -                     60,222           
Cemetery Care Fund 10,055                       2,000            12,055           

Debt Service Fund 3,726,110                 181,142        3,907,252     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,737,112                 2,070,675    5,807,787     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 162,540                    (33,799)         128,741        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 840,690                    (226,154)      614,536        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 125,618                    42,680          168,298        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 57,026                       (2,631)           54,395           
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                                 211,387        211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 7,686                         -                     7,686             
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,886                         -                     3,886             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 12,444                       -                     12,444           
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 56,485                       -                     56,485           
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 52,547                       -                     52,547           
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 46,204                       -                     46,204           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    -                     327,431        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 397,717                    (35,219)         362,498        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    -                     526,494        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 6,765,084                 (3,574,776)   3,190,308     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 6,804,143    6,804,143     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 19,376                       50,611          69,987           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 21,830                       22,993          44,823           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 23,562                       30,362          53,924           
Municipal Airport Operating 309,066                    100,096        409,162        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 196,884                    (49,000)         147,884        
Health Insurance Fund 45,564                       (43,893)         1,671             
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 509,867                    (24,135)         485,732        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651               1,184,128    13,117,779   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 17,068,585               3,504,513    20,573,098   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,164                         -                     8,164             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

92% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Published in the Examiner Enterprise 
 
 
May 18th, 22nd, & 25th, 2024 
 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
 
The City of Bartlesville will accept sealed bids for the purchase of the following described items 
at the office of the City Clerk, 401 S. Johnstone Ave, Bartlesville, Oklahoma until the hour of 
2:00 p.m. on Monday, June 17, 2024. 
 
  2024-2025-001 Water & Wastewater Line Repair Materials  
 
  2024-2025-002 Water Treatment Chemicals 
 
 
 
All bids must be placed in a sealed envelope for each bid submitted.  All bids must indicate the 
following on the outside of each sealed envelope: 
 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BIDDER 
BID NUMBER 
 
Bids may be mailed, but must reach the City Clerk’s office before the deadline to be considered.  
Address bids to: 
 
City of Bartlesville 
City Clerk 
401 S. Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003-6619 
 
The City reserves the right to make the final determination as to what constitutes the best bid 
and it reserves the right to reject or accept any or all bids or portions thereof. 
 
Dated this 14th day of May 2024. 
 
 

          Terry L. Lauritsen   
                                                                                       Terry L. Lauritsen                                           

                                                                                         Director of Water Utilities 
 



7.



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       918-

210-8992                  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

A-1 3/4" PE Pipe   C.T.S. 1000 ft 0.28$                     NO BID 0.28$                         NO BID

A-2 1" PE Pipe  C.T.S. 500 ft 0.45$                     NO BID 0.46$                         NO BID

A-3 1-1/2" PE Pipe  C.T.S 600 ft 0.88$                     NO BID 0.97$                         NO BID

A-4 2" PE Pipe  C.T.S. 3000 ft 1.40$                     NO BID 1.66$                         NO BID

A-5 4" C-900 DR 18 200 ft 5.32$                     NO BID 6.19$                         NO BID

A-6 6" C-900 DR 18 200 ft 10.67$                   NO BID 12.65$                       NO BID

A-7 4" SCH 40 PVC 400 ft 2.65$                     NO BID 2.56$                         NO BID

A-8 6" PVC SDR 26 500 ft 6.34$                     NO BID 8.02$                         NO BID

A-9 8" PVC SDR 26 1000 ft 11.48$                   NO BID 13.65$                       NO BID

A-10 10" PVC SDR 26 100 ft 17.88$                   NO BID 21.19$                       NO BID

A-11 Poly Wrap (bid per roll   200'  per roll)       
Core & Main = 200'  UTS = 440' 10 rl 56.00$                   NO BID 147.40$                     NO BID

A-12 Caution Tape (bid per roll 1,000' per roll)  10 rl 7.90$                     NO BID 6.95$                         NO BID

A-13 Detectable Locator Tape (bid per roll  
1,000' per roll) 5 rl 20.35$                   NO BID 36.06$                       NO BID

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION A:  PIPE & TUBING

1



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       918-

210-8992                  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION A:  PIPE & TUBING

A-14 Poly Tape (bid per roll  100' per roll) 5 rl 5.30$                     NO BID 3.85$                         NO BID

A-15 #12 Solid Wire THHN 500' roll (bid per 
roll) 12 rl 60.00$                   NO BID 76.00$                       NO BID

2



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)                        
Jeff Shultz                   

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

B-1 4" Mega Lugs (DIP) 8 ea 39.35$                    NO BID 34.37$                     NO BID

B-2 4" Mega Lugs (PVC) w/ 4 wedge 8 ea 44.00$                    NO BID 40.41$                     NO BID

B-3 6" Mega Lugs (DIP) 30 ea 45.80$                    NO BID 48.25$                     NO BID

B-4 6" Mega Lugs (PVC) w/ 6 wedge 100 ea 70.15$                    NO BID 56.19$                     NO BID

B-5 8" Mega Lugs (DIP) 10 ea 62.00$                    NO BID 61.80$                     NO BID

B-6 8" Mega Lugs (PVC) w/ 6 wedge 100 ea 71.00$                    NO BID 74.30$                     NO BID

B-7 14" Mega Lugs (DIP) w/10 wedge 2 ea 162.00$                  NO BID 167.12$                   NO BID

B-8 14" Mega Lugs (PVC) w/10 wedge 2 ea 210.00$                  NO BID 170.27$                   NO BID

B-9 6" MJ 11 1/4° Bend 2 ea 77.20$                    NO BID 138.38$                   NO BID

B-10 8" MJ 11 1/4° Bend 2 ea 104.85$                  NO BID 176.86$                   NO BID

B-11 6" MJ 22 1/2° Bend 2 ea 73.85$                    NO BID 134.51$                   NO BID

B-12 8" MJ 22 1/2° Bend 2 ea 115.10$                  NO BID 188.00$                   NO BID

B-13 4" MJ 45° Bend 2 ea 51.35$                    NO BID 105.54$                   NO BID

B-14 6" MJ 45° Bend 15 ea 81.30$                    NO BID 142.25$                   NO BID

Estimated 
Quantity

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

SECTION B:  DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS

3



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)                        
Jeff Shultz                   

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

Estimated 
Quantity

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

SECTION B:  DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS

B-15 8" MJ 45° Bend 5 ea 118.10$                  NO BID 190.91$                   NO BID

B-16 6" MJ 90° Bend 6 ea 100.85$                  NO BID 162.11$                   NO BID

B-17 8" MJ 90° Bend 3 ea 145.70$                  NO BID 218.51$                   NO BID

B-18 4" MJ Bolt Pack 24 ea 16.90$                    NO BID 12.90$                     NO BID

B-19 4" MJ Plug 2 ea 29.10$                    NO BID 42.92$                     NO BID

B-20 6" MJ Plug 2 ea 54.40$                    NO BID 70.91$                     NO BID

B-21 8" MJ Plug 2 ea 79.85$                    NO BID 99.38$                     NO BID

B-22 4 x 2 MJ Plug 2 ea 53.50$                    NO BID 68.10$                     NO BID

B-23 8 x 6 MJ Reducer 2 ea 85.15$                    NO BID 151.09$                   NO BID

B-24 6 x 6 x 6 MJ Swivel Tee 6 ea 167.55$                  NO BID 246.12$                   NO BID

B-25 8 x 8 x 6 MJ Swivel Tee 4 ea 209.80$                  NO BID 298.61$                   NO BID

B-26 6 x 6 x 6 MJ Straight Tee 6 ea 145.00$                  NO BID 236.38$                   NO BID

B-27 8 x 8 x 6 MJ Straight Tee 4 ea 180.00$                  NO BID 282.13$                   NO BID

B-28 8 x 8 x 8 MJ Straight Tee 4 ea 216.65$                  NO BID 325.82$                   NO BID

4



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)                        
Jeff Shultz                   

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

Estimated 
Quantity

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

SECTION B:  DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS

B-29 4 x 2 MJ Tapped Plug 2 ea 53.25$                    NO BID 68.10$                     NO BID

B-30 6 x 2 MJ Tapped Plug 4 ea 77.55$                    NO BID 95.60$                     NO BID

B-31 8 x 2 MJ Tapped Plug 2 ea 103.90$                  NO BID 124.56$                   NO BID

B-32 4" Solid Sleeves (12" Length) 8 ea 54.10$                    NO BID 108.93$                   NO BID

B-33 6" Solid Sleeves (12" Length) 24 ea 90.16$                    NO BID 152.42$                   NO BID

B-34 8" Solid Sleeves (12"Length) 8 ea 145.60$                  NO BID 219.96$                   NO BID

B-35 10" Solid Sleeves (12" Length) 2 ea 174.25$                  NO BID 276.61$                   NO BID

B-36 3/4"x4" T Bolts 100 ea 2.05$                      NO BID 1.59$                       NO BID

5



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

C-1 3" Fire Hydrant Meter 3 ea 1,850.00$          NO BID 1,355.76$            NO BID

C-2 5 1/4" Fire Hydrant Main Valve, Mueller 8 ea 690.00$             NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-3 5 1/4" Fire Hydrant Main Valve, Kennedy, 
KB-10 8 ea 595.00$             NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-4 5 1/4" Fire Hydrant Repair Kit, Kennedy, 
KB-10 4 ea 595.00$             NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-5 5 1/4" Fire Hydrant Repair Kit, U.S. 6 ea 550.00$             NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-6 Fire Hydrant, 3' Bury 3 ea 2,560.00$          NO BID 2,456.44$            2,381.25$         

C-7 Fire Hydrant, 3.5' Bury 2 ea 2,600.00$          NO BID 2,516.05$            2,439.04$         

C-8 Fire Hydrant, 4' Bury 2 ea 2,680.00$          NO BID 2,575.65$            2,496.81$         

C-9 Fire Hydrant, 4.5 Bury 3 ea 2,745.00$          NO BID 2,635.26$            2,554.60$         

C-10 Fire Hydrant, 5' Bury 3 ea 2,795.00$          NO BID 2,694.86$            2,629.11$         

C-11 Traffic Repair Kits for Mueller Centruian 
022MUA301 3 ea 450.00$             NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-12 Large Meter Boxes Complete with Lids 
(Carson 1730-18 HDPE) 15 ea 315.65$             NO BID 317.35$               314.05$            

C-13 Small Meter Boxes Complete with Lids 
(Carson 2200-18) 150 ea. 135.00$             NO BID 128.16$               126.83$            

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION C:  VALVES, HYDRANTS, METERS & BOXES

6



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION C:  VALVES, HYDRANTS, METERS & BOXES

C-14 Small Meter Boxes (Carson 2200-18) 300 ea 56.25$               NO BID 56.30$                 55.71$              

C-15 Small Meter Box Lids 50 ea 76.15$               NO BID 73.92$                 73.15$              

C-16 Thru the lid flange & nut (Nepune) for 
attaching AMI antennas 200 ea 45.60$               NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-17 5 1/4" x 2 1/4" Valve Box Extension 24 ea 34.50$               NO BID 19.45$                 NO BID

C-18 5 1/4" x 4" Valve Box Extension 20 ea 45.95$               NO BID 45.98$                 NO BID

C-19 Valve Box, Short Adj. 10"-Top 16"-Bottom 
COMPLETE 36 ea 116.00$             NO BID 48.44$                 NO BID

C-20 Valve Box, Tall Adj. 16"-Top, 24"-Bottom 
COMPLETE 50 ea 135.55$             NO BID 68.97$                 NO BID

C-21 10" Valve Box Tops 10 ea 19.25$               NO BID 20.53$                 NO BID

C-22 16" Valve Box Tops 10 ea 30.15$               NO BID 30.38$                 NO BID

C-23 16" Valve Box Bottoms 10 ea 28.00$               NO BID 27.92$                 NO BID

C-24 24" Valve Box Bottoms 10 ea 40.15$               NO BID 38.59$                 NO BID

C-25 3" RW MJ Gate Valve 3 ea 597.30$             NO BID 662.54$               536.72$            

C-26 4" RW MJ Gate Valve 6 ea 670.00$             NO BID 753.50$               596.36$            

C-27 6" RW MJ Gate Valve 25 ea 874.00$             NO BID 922.68$               750.84$            

7



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION C:  VALVES, HYDRANTS, METERS & BOXES

C-28 8" RW MJ Gate Valve 5 ea. 1,350.00$          NO BID 1,425.52$            1,208.95$         

C-29 4" RW Flange x MJ Tapping Valve 1 ea. 836.00$             NO BID 911.25$               606.76$            

C-30 6" RW Flange x MJ Tapping Valve 10 ea. 1,195.00$          NO BID 1,238.22$            765.12$            

C-31 8" RW Flange x MJ Tapping Valve 5 ea. 1,773.00$          NO BID 1,797.78$            1,225.37$         

C-32 Water Sample Stations Eclipse #88 5 ea. 1,210.00$          NO BID 999.00$               NO BID

8



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       918-

210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

Couplings (Stainless Steel Nuts & Bolts)

D-1 1" Bolted Coupling 20 ea 38.45$               NO BID 53.34$                   NO BID

D-2 1.5" Bolted Coupling 12 ea 43.45$               NO BID 56.73$                   NO BID

D-3 2"x5" Bolted Coupling #411 24 ea 46.15$               NO BID 66.21$                   NO BID

D-4 3" Bolted Coupling #461 OD 3.46-4.21 2 ea 128.45$             NO BID 109.26$                 NO BID

D-5 4" Bolted Coupling #461 OD 4.20-5.33 6 ea 159.65$             NO BID 137.52$                 NO BID

D-6 6" Bolted Coupling #461 OD 6.54-7.65 20 ea 219.75$             NO BID 162.11$                 NO BID

D-7 8" Bolted Coupling #461 8.54 x 9.90 15 ea 263.50$             NO BID 200.07$                 NO BID

D-8 10" Bolted Coupling #462 OD 10.65-12.20 4 ea 458.00$             NO BID 318.28$                 NO BID

D-9 12" Bolted Coupling #462 OD 12.75 - 14.40 4 ea 544.79$             NO BID 351.10$                 NO BID

D-10 3/4" Galv. Comp Coupling #522 36 ea 19.75$               NO BID 6.47$                     NO BID

D-11 1" Galv. Comp Coupling #522 30 ea 20.15$               NO BID 8.67$                     NO BID

D-12 2" Galv. Comp. Coupling #522 24 ea 39.20$               NO BID 16.41$                   NO BID

# 248 Clamps

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION D: COUPLINGS, CLAMPS, TAPPING SLEEVES

9



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       918-

210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION D: COUPLINGS, CLAMPS, TAPPING SLEEVES

D-13 1-1/2" x 3" Clamp #248 SB OD 1.88-1.90 6 ea 21.00$               NO BID 16.91$                   NO BID

D-14 1-1/2" x 6" Clamp #248 SB OD 1.88-1.90 15 ea 41.00$               NO BID 33.28$                   NO BID

# 261 Clamps (Single Band)

D-15 2"x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 2.35-2.63 5 ea 49.00$               NO BID 51.36$                   NO BID

D-16 4" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 4.74-5.41 5 ea 62.00$               NO BID 70.24$                   NO BID

D-17 4" x 12" Clamp #261 OD 4.74-5.14 5 ea 95.00$               NO BID 95.57$                   NO BID

D-18 4" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 4.74-5.14 5 ea 105.40$             NO BID 152.89$                 NO BID

D-19 6" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 6.56-6.96 2 ea 70.00$               NO BID 84.55$                   NO BID

D-20 6" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 6.84-7.24 36 ea 72.25$               NO BID 84.55$                   NO BID

D-21 6" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 7.05-7.45 5 ea 73.65$               NO BID 84.55$                   NO BID

D-22 6" x 12-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 6.84-7.24 20 ea 115.80$             NO BID 111.51$                 NO BID

D-23 6" x 12-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 7.05-7.45 10 ea 116.85$             NO BID 111.51$                 NO BID

D-24 6" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 6.56-6.96 2 ea 126.45$             NO BID 138.26$                 NO BID

D-25 6" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 6.84-7.24 20 ea 127.50$             NO BID 138.26$                 NO BID

10



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       918-

210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION D: COUPLINGS, CLAMPS, TAPPING SLEEVES

D-26 6" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 7.05-7.45 2 ea 127.50$             NO BID 138.26$                 NO BID

D-27 8" x 7-1/2"  Clamp #261 OD 8.54-8.94 2 ea 83.95$               NO BID 86.74$                   NO BID

D-28 8" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 8.99-9.39 15 ea 83.95$               NO BID 86.74$                   NO BID

D-29 8" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 9.05-9.39 (Part 
#90507) 4 ea 83.95$               NO BID 86.74$                   NO BID

D-30 8" x 12-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 8.54-8.94 10 ea 130.00$             NO BID 140.80$                 NO BID

D-31 8" x 12-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 8.99-9.39 10 ea 130.00$             NO BID 111.25$                 NO BID

D-32 8" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 8.54-8.94 2 ea 154.00$             NO BID 140.80$                 NO BID

D-33 8" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 8.99-9.39 10 ea 155.10$             NO BID 140.80$                 NO BID

D-34 10" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 11.04-11.44 2 ea 198.10$             NO BID 166.51$                 NO BID

# 262 Clamps (Double Band)

D-35 6" x 7-1/2" Clamp #262 OD 6.84-7.64 2 ea 110.00$             NO BID 120.58$                 NO BID

D-36 6" x 15" Clamp #262 OD 6.84-7.64 2 ea 207.95$             NO BID 202.47$                 NO BID

D-37 8" x 7-1/2" Clamp #262 OD 8.99-9.79 2 ea 125.95$             NO BID 127.05$                 NO BID

D-38 8" x 15" Clamp #262 OD 8.99-9.79 2 ea 236.00$             NO BID 211.34$                 NO BID

11



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz       918-

210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION D: COUPLINGS, CLAMPS, TAPPING SLEEVES

D-39 10" x 15" Clamp #262 OD 11.10-11.90 2 ea 295.00$             NO BID 241.46$                 NO BID

D-40 10"x20" Clamp #262 OD 11.10-11.90 2 ea 390.00$             NO BID 334.10$                 NO BID

# 264 Clamps

D-41 6"x7.5"x1" CC Clamp #264 OD 6.84-7.24 20 ea 98.50$               NO BID 154.55$                 NO BID

D-42 6"x12.5"x1" CC Clamp #264 OD 6.56-6.96 20ea. 140.00$             NO BID 235.72$                 NO BID

D-43 6"x15"x1" CC Clamp #264 OD 6.84-7.24 20 ea 153.75$             NO BID 217.83$                 NO BID

# 662 Wet Tap Saddles

D-44 6"x4" Wet Tap Saddle CIOD #662 2 ea 396.85$             NO BID 654.67$                 NO BID

D-45 6"x6" Wet Tap Saddle Transite Pipe #662 2 ea 490.00$             NO BID 694.76$                 NO BID

D-46 6"x6" Wet Tap Saddle CIOD #662 5 ea 484.65$             NO BID 694.76$                 NO BID

D-47 8"x6" Wet Tap Saddle CIOD #662 2 ea 555.00$             NO BID 740.31$                 NO BID

D-48 8"x8" Wet Tap Saddle CIOD #662 2 ea 728.75$             NO BID 956.81$                 NO BID

12



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz           

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

E-1 3/4" Angle Ball Meter Stop                     
BA13-232W 100 ea 39.80$              40.65$               40.01$                   39.41$              

E-2 3/4" Angle Ball Meter Valve,                 
BA23-332-W 50 ea 78.75$              79.25$               78.04$                   76.83$              

E-3 3/4" Angle Ball Meter Valve,                                 
BA43-232-W 50 ea 46.70$              47.73$               46.98$                   46.27$              

E-4 3/4" Angle Ball Meter Valve                        
BA-43-332-W 50 ea 79.85$              81.50$               72.95$                   79.02$              

E-5 1" Angle Ball Meter Valve                        
BA43-444-W 50 ea 115.70$            122.32$             120.47$                 118.58$            

E-6 1" Angle Key Meter Valve (Female) 
KV13-444W (Stops) 50 ea 48.40$              51.23$               50.48$                   49.67$              

E-7 1" Angle Key Meter Valve (Flare) KV23-
444 W 50 ea 51.70$              54.66$               53.83$                   52.99$              

E-8 1" Angle Key Meter Valve 
(Compression) KV43-444W (Stops) 50 ea 55.10$              58.48$               57.63$                   56.70$              

E-9 1 1/2" Ball Valve Curb Stop                 
B11-666W 6 ea 170.00$            178.53$             175.48$                 173.07$            

E-10 2" Ball Valve Curb Stop                       
B11-777-W 6 ea 245.50$            259.76$             255.62$                 251.81$            

E-11 3/4" Ball Corp Stop   FB-1000-3 100 ea 49.20$              51.95$               51.19$                   50.36$              

E-12 1" Ball Corp Stop         FB-1000-4 50 ea 64.65$              68.32$               67.31$                   66.23$              

E-13 1 1/2" Ball Corp Stop   FB-1000-6 10 ea 146.00$            153.15$             150.84$                 148.46$            

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

13



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz           

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

E-14 2" Ball Corp Stop         FB-1000-7 15 ea 239.60$            253.31$             249.48$                 245.56$            

E-15 3/4" Insert, #51 500 ea 1.47$                2.05$                 1.51$                     1.92$                

E-16 1" Insert, #52 500 ea 1.57$                2.15$                 1.60$                     2.05$                

E-17 1.5" Insert #54 300 ea 2.13$                3.00$                 2.20$                     2.81$                

E-18 2" Insert #55 300 ea 2.13$                3.00$                 2.20$                     2.81$                

E-19 3/4"x1" A-24 Adapters 50 ea 25.25$              13.38$               26.31$                   13.11$              

E-20 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    C-14-33 75 ea 16.05$              16.93$               16.68$                   16.41$              

E-21 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    C-84-33 100 ea 15.15$              16.11$               15.86$                   15.62$              

E-22 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    L-84-33 100 ea 16.65$              17.63$               17.37$                   17.10$              

E-23 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    C-44-33 75 ea 18.50$              19.61$               19.32$                   19.02$              

E-24 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    L-14-33 50 ea 21.60$              22.85$               22.51$                   22.16$              

E-25 1" Pack Joint Coupling      C-14-44 50 ea 21.70$              22.97$               22.63$                   22.27$              

E-26 1" Pack Joint Coupling       C-84-44 50 ea 17.90$              19.07$               18.78$                   18.49$              

E-27 1" Pack Joint Coupling       C-44-44 50 ea 30.05$              22.43$               22.10$                   21.75$              

14



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz           

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

E-28 1" Pack Joint Coupling       L-14-44 50 ea 35.20$              37.24$               36.70$                   36.11$              

E-29 1" Pack Joint Coupling       L-84-44 50 ea 27.75$              29.34$               28.90$                   28.44$              

E-30 1 1/2" Pack Joint Coupling  C-14-66 12 ea 64.45$              66.83$               65.81$                   64.79$              

E-31 1 1/2" Pack Joint Coupling  C-44-66 12 ea 72.40$              75.04$               73.94$                   72.75$              

E-32 1 1/2" Pack Joint Coupling  C-84-66 12 ea 50.35$              52.24$               51.45$                   50.65$              

E-33 1 1/2" Pack Joint Coupling  L-84-66 12 ea 82.15$              85.20$               83.92$                   82.60$              

E-34 2" Pack Joint Coupling        C-14-77 12 ea 74.50$              79.56$               78.37$                   77.13$              

E-35 2" Pack Joint Coupling        C-44-77 12 ea 94.90$              101.34$             99.81$                   98.24$              

E-36 2" Pack Joint Coupling        C-84-77 18 ea 71.30$              76.12$               74.97$                   73.79$              

E-37 2" Pack Joint Coupling        L-14-77 12 ea 127.50$            134.83$             132.79$                 130.71$            

E-38 2" Pack Joint Coupling        L-44-77 12 ea 204.20$            211.49$             208.31$                 205.03$            

E-39 2" Pack Joint Coupling           L-84-77 12 ea 117.75$            122.00$             120.27$                 118.27$            

E-40 3/4"x3/4"x3/4" Comp Tee   T-444-333 12 ea 44.85$              47.47$               46.74$                   46.03$              

E-41 1"x1"x1" Comp Tee          T-444-444 12 ea 47.57$              50.76$               50.02$                   49.21$              

15



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz           

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

E-42 1" x 3/4" Brass Bushing CC Thread 100 ea 17.35$              17.35$               13.34$                   16.82$              

E-43 1-1/2" x 1" Brass Bushing CC Thread 12 ea 45.30$              46.95$               36.08$                   45.52$              

E-44 2" x 1-1/2" Brass Bushing 12 ea 55.20$              57.14$               43.93$                   55.39$              

E-45 3/4" x 3" Brass Nipple 12 ea 4.30$                NO BID 3.33$                     NO BID

E-46 1"x 3" Brass Nipple 12 ea 6.25$                NO BID 4.83$                     NO BID

E-47 1-1/2" x 3" Brass Nipple 12 ea 10.75$              NO BID 8.47$                     NO BID

E-48 2" x 3" Brass Nipple 12 ea 13.95$              NO BID 10.86$                   NO BID

E-49 2" x 6" Brass Nipple 12 ea 27.00$              NO BID 20.97$                   NO BID

E-50 3/4" Copper Setter                                
VB72-12W-44-33 50 ea 114.55$            118.75$             116.97$                 118.75$            

E-51 1" Copper Setter                                    
VB74-12W-44-44 50 ea 228.55$            234.52$             231.00$                 237.02$            

E-52 1 1/2" Copper Setter                          
VBB76-15B-44-66 12 ea 1,049.45$         1,076.65$          1,060.47$              1,076.69$         

E-53 2" Copper Setter                                  
VBB77-15B-44-77 12 ea 1,230.00$         1,261.60$          1,242.65$              1,331.72$         

E-54 Service Saddle 2"x1" CC 12 ea 49.55$              NO BID 59.33$                   NO BID

E-55 Service Saddle 4"x3/4" CC 6 ea 47.60$              NO BID 69.57$                   NO BID

16



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                     
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)    
Jeff Shultz           

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

E-56 Service Saddle 4" x 1" CC 6 ea 47.60$              NO BID 69.57$                   NO BID

E-57 Service Saddle 4"x 1-1/2" CC 6 ea 50.75$              NO BID 72.78$                   NO BID

E-58 Service Saddle 4" x 2" CC 6 ea 56.00$              NO BID 72.78$                   NO BID

E-59 Service Saddle 6"x 3/4" CC 12 ea 54.70$              NO BID 76.74$                   NO BID

E-60 Service Saddle 6"x1" CC 50 ea 54.70$              NO BID 76.74$                   NO BID

E-61 Service Saddle 6"x 1-1/2" CC 6 ea 59.40$              NO BID 82.82$                   NO BID

E-62 Service Saddle 6"x2" CC 6 ea 65.55$              NO BID 82.82$                   NO BID

E-63 Service Saddle 8"x 3/4" CC 6 ea 64.50$              NO BID 87.97$                   NO BID

E-64 Service Saddle 8"x1" CC 50 ea 64.50$              NO BID 87.97$                   NO BID

E-65 Service Saddle 8"x 1-1/2" CC 6 ea 69.95$              NO BID 94.63$                   NO BID

E-66 Service Saddle 8"x2"CC 6 ea 76.25$              NO BID 94.63$                   NO BID

17



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                              
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)              
Jeff Shultz                 

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

Manhole Frames, Covers & Gasket

F-1 8" Manhole Frame & Lid #R1687 5 ea 456.00$             NO BID 280.10$                 NO BID

F-2 7" Manhole Frame & Lid #R1797 10 ea 330.00$             NO BID 384.24$                 NO BID

F-3 5" Manhole Frame & Lid #R300-24A 10 ea 465.00$             NO BID 329.55$                 NO BID

F-4 Manhole Frame & Lid #280-24 10 ea 465.00$             NO BID 330.00$                 NO BID

F-5 Lamp Hole Box & Lid 10 ea 224.50$             NO BID 198.52$                 NO BID

Sewer Couplings   (Hubs) INDIANA SEAL ONLY

F-6 4" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 25 ea 5.10$                 NO BID 8.06$                     NO BID

F-7 4" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 50 ea 5.10$                 NO BID 8.06$                     NO BID

F-8 6" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 20 ea 10.45$               NO BID 17.26$                   NO BID

F-9 6" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 40 ea 10.45$               NO BID 17.26$                   NO BID

F-10 8" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 30 ea 16.45$               NO BID 26.53$                   NO BID

F-11 8" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 100 ea 16.45$               NO BID 26.53$                   NO BID

F-12 10" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 12 ea 24.70$               NO BID 39.84$                   NO BID

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION F:  MANHOLES, COUPLINGS, FITTINGS 

18



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                              
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)              
Jeff Shultz                 

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION F:  MANHOLES, COUPLINGS, FITTINGS 

F-13 10" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 24 ea 24.70$               NO BID 39.84$                   NO BID

F-14 12" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 12 ea 28.95$               NO BID 46.49$                   NO BID

F-15 12" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 12 ea 28.95$               NO BID 46.49$                   NO BID

Fittings & Tap Saddles

F-16 4" PVC 45˚ Elbow SCH 40 DWV 100 ea 8.00$                 NO BID 7.16$                     NO BID

F-17 4" PVC 22 1/2˚ Elbow SCH 40 DWV 24 ea 12.55$               NO BID 11.18$                   NO BID

F-18 6" PVC 45° Elbow w/gasket SDR 26 12 ea 39.50$               NO BID 40.40$                   NO BID

F-19 8" PVC 45° Elbow w/gasket SDR 26 12 ea 95.00$               NO BID 100.37$                 NO BID

F-20 6x4 SDR 35 Saddle Tee,  Gasket Skirt 20 ea. 37.00$               NO BID 37.36$                   NO BID

     with SS Straps, Sch 40 SW Branch

F-21 8x4 SDR 35 Saddle Tee,  Gasket Skirt 40 ea. 51.65$               NO BID 49.73$                   NO BID

     with SS Straps, Sch 40 SW Branch

19



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2024-2025-001

TIE BID

Item # Description
 CORE & MAIN                                            

Kenzie                              
918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE             
Mike Weldon           
918-445-0005 

UTILITY 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES (UTS)              
Jeff Shultz                 

918-210-8992                  

 TULSA 
WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION F:  MANHOLES, COUPLINGS, FITTINGS 

F-22 10x4 SDR 35 Saddle Tee,  Gasket Skirt 20 ea. 76.30$               NO BID 72.34$                   NO BID

     with SS Straps, Sch 40 SW Branch

F-23 12x4 SDR 35 Saddle Tee,  Gasket Skirt 12 ea. 90.75$               NO BID 89.74$                   NO BID

     with SS Straps, Sch 40 SW Branch

F-24 1 1/2" Preformed Flex Plastic - 10 bxs. 120.00$             NO BID NO BID NO BID

   Gasket (Ram-Nek)

F-25 Romac Tap Saddle CB 4" 12 ea. 119.65$             NO BID 117.14$                 NO BID

      Outlet Fits 6" to 12" Pipe

F-26 Romac Tap Saddle CB 6" 12 ea. 159.50$             NO BID 156.16$                 NO BID

       Outlet Fits 6" to 12" Pipe

F-27 4" Rubber Test Cap 20 ea. 2.75$                 NO BID 3.03$                     NO BID

F-28 5" Rubber Test Cap 20 ea. 4.00$                 NO BID 5.90$                     NO BID

F-29 3" PVC Pop Up Clean Out Caps 20 ea. 36.50$               NO BID 7.79$                     NO BID

F-30 4" PVC Pop Up Clean Out Caps 20 ea. 36.50$               NO BID 10.54$                   NO BID

20



8.



SHADED AREA - RECOMMEND AWARD

CHEMICAL: Chlorine Gas Hydrofluorosilicic 
Acid

Potassium 
Permanganate Coagulant ACH Coagulation 

Aid
Drying Bed 

Polymer Polyphosphate Sodium 
Hydroxide

Aqueous 
Ammonia

Powdered Activated 
Carbon

Est. Quantity 60 TON 15,000 GALLONS 50,000 LBS 720 TON 12 TOTES 6,000 LBS 15,000 LBS 60,000 LBS 450,000 LBS 60 TON 46,000 LBS

$1,425.000
$0.463/lb

Notes:

$2.55

$0.737Shannon Chemical Corp.

Univar Solutions USA 
LLC $2.80 $3.240 $0.2338

$2.530

Aqua Smart, Inc. $1.052

$300.40

Recommended Bid Award 

Airgas Specialties 

$1.210

* The recommended bid award has a more effective chemical for our needs based on previous trials.  Recommend awarding to the lowest and best bid for the drying bed polymer.

*$2.10

$2.41

$3.03/gal

$1.095

$0.770

$1.380

$0.2389

$0.520

$1.200$2.07

$1.968

$0.480

$700

$1.380

$760

$5.100 $0.880

$1.120

$1.220

$1.380

OMNI Water 
Consultants,Inc.

Chemtrade Cemicals US 
LLC

Hawkins Inc.

Polydyne Inc.

Chemrite Inc.

Jacobi Carbons, Inc.

Pennco, Inc.

$2,576

City of Bartlesville
Water Treatment Chemical Bid #2024-2025 

Baker Services, Inc.

Carbon Activated Corp.

LEGEND:       

Brenntag Southwest, Inc.

$228

Water Tech, Inc.

Carus LLC



9.

5





10.

























































Agenda Item ___ 
May 6, 2024 

Prepared by Mike Bailey, City Manager 
Administration 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance permitting the use of golf carts on City 
streets.   
 
Attachments: 

Ordinance 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Councilmember Roszel has expressed an interest in exploring an ordinance that permit the safe 
use of golf carts on city streets. He and I have discussed this a few times in the past, and I was 
able to obtain a few model ordinances used by other cities in Oklahoma. The attached ordinance 
is the result of the review of these ordinances, input from City staff, and a final review by our 
City Attorney. 
 
The major impacts of this ordinance are: 
 

• Permit golf carts to be used on city streets 
• Require a valid driver’s license for any operators 
• Only permitted on streets with speed limits not in excess of 35mph 
• Passengers must sit in the designated seating area of the cart only 
• Cart must maintain a speed less than or at 20mph 
• State law relating to headlamps and tail lamps must be followed if a cart is used at night 
• Must be posted as a slow moving vehicle 
• Carts must follow all applicable rules of the road 
• Carts may only enter a State highway for the perpendicular crossing of said highway 

 
City staff supports the implementation of this ordinance.  Please schedule this for our May 6 
Council meeting. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 None 
 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Approved the attached ordinance. 

11.



ORDINANCE NO.  ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 19 – TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE ADDING PROVISIONS FOR THE SAFE 
OPERATION OF GOLF CARTS UPON CITY STREETS AND PROVIDING FOR 
RENUMBERING SUBSEQENT SECTIONS. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to add a new Article to Chapter 19 of the Bartlesville Municipal 
Code to allow and regulate the safe use of golf carts upon city streets. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA, that: 
 
A new Article XVII titled “Golf Carts” shall be created in Chapter 19 of the Bartlesville municipal 
code that shall read as follows: 
 

1. Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning:  

(1) Golf cart means a motor vehicle that:  
i. Has no less than three wheels;  

ii. Has a maximum speed of between 15-20 miles per hour;  
iii. Is designed to carry not more than four persons including the driver; and  
iv. Is manufactured primarily for operation on golf courses.  

(2) Insurance means motor vehicle insurance which complies with the requirement set 
forth in O.S. title 36.  

(3) Slow moving vehicle emblem means a sign which complies with the requirements set 
forth in 47 O.S. § 12-427.  

2. A golf cart may be operated within the city limits, as expressly provided in this section.  
(1) Any person operating a golf cart upon a city street must have a valid driver’s license 

acceptable to the State of Oklahoma.  
(2) The individual operating the golf cart shall maintain financial responsibility for 

operation of such golf cart in accordance with the requirements set forth in O.S. title 
36.  

(3) Golf carts shall only be operated on city streets with a speed limit of no greater than 
35 miles per hour.  

(4) Only the number of people the golf cart is designed to seat may ride on the golf cart. 
Passengers must be seated at all times and shall not ride in the area designated for 
golf bags.  



(5) No golf cart may be operated at a speed greater than reasonable and prudent for 
existing conditions, or at a speed greater than 20 miles per hour.  

(6) No golf cart may be operated in a careless or reckless manner.  
(7) Golf carts must be operated to the extreme right of the roadway and must yield to all 

vehicular and pedestrian traffic.  
(8) Operation shall be during daylight hours only, except for those that are equipped with 

Department of Transportation (DOT) approved head lamps and tail lamps that are 
properly attached and adjusted as required by title 47 Oklahoma Statutes 12-203 
Head Lamps, 47 Oklahoma Statutes 12-204 Tail Lamps, and 47 Oklahoma Statutes 
12-206 Stop Lamps. 

(9) A slow-moving vehicle sign as defined in subsection (a) of this section must be 
posted upon said golf cart in accordance with state statutes.  

(10) Golf carts shall not be operated on or across any public or private property without 
the express permission of the property owner.  

(11) Golf carts may not be used for the commercial carrying of passengers or the hauling 
of freight.  

(12) Motorized golf cart operators must obey all traffic laws which can reasonably be 
applied to golf carts. However, laws dealing with motor vehicle licensing shall not 
apply.  

(13) Violation of this section may be enforced by the city police by any legal method 
prescribed by law, including, but not limited to, the following: Any person or entity 
violating any of the provisions of this section may be prosecuted in the same manner 
as misdemeanors are prosecuted and shall, upon conviction, be punished for each 
offense by a fine not to exceed $500.00.  

(14) No golf cart shall be operated on any state highway except for the perpendicular 
crossing of a state highway located within the municipal boundaries of the city.  
 

Subsequent articles of Chapter 19 of the Bartlesville municipal code shall be renumbered as follows: 

 ARTICLE XVIII. - ONE-WAY STREETS AND ALLEYS 

ARTICLE XIX. - BICYCLES 

ARTICLE XX. - EMERGENCY VEHICLES 

ARTICLE XXI. - HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TRUCK ROUTES 

ARTICLE XXII. - RAILROAD TRAINS AND CROSSINGS 

ARTICLE XXIII. - SEATBELTS 

 

 

 



APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE THIS 6TH DAY OF MAY 2024. 

_________________________________________ 
Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor 
City of Bartlesville 

_________________________________________ 
City Clerk 
City of Bartlesville 



 
1 

 

Agenda Item ___ 
July 1, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Snyder 
Community Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consideration and possible adoption of an ordinance to change the name of the east/west segment of Oak 
Park Road to Roane Road within the Oak Wood Addition. 

Attachments: 
(1) Ordinance 
(2) Overall Site Development Plan 
(3) Exhibit of Segment to be Renamed 

 
 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The housing development known as Arcadian will consist of the construction of over 100 single 
family residences on a majority of the lots within the Oak Wood Addition to the City of 
Bartlesville. As a pre-requisite to the construction of said homes, public infrastructure to serve 
the development must first be installed, including roads. 
 
The plat for the Oak Wood Addition to the City of Bartlesville was recorded in Washington 
County in 1982. It dedicated right of way and established names for streets within the 
subdivision. In the western and northern portion of the subdivision, an east/west and north/south 
segment of right of way were both given the name Oak Park Road. 
 
Modern street naming best practices generally seek to avoid giving perpendicular streets the 
same name to lessen confusion and improve the furnishing of police and fire protection to the 
residents of the city.  
 
No other existing street or right of way within the City of Bartlesville aligns with this east/west 
segment of Oak Park Road and this east/west segment of Oak Park Road has not yet been 
constructed. 
 
The developer of the Arcadian project intends to construct a portion of this east/west segment 
where it would connect to Virginia Ave. He supports the name change for the public safety 
reasons listed, and has suggested a name in honor of Billie Roane, the City Councilor that 
previously represented the area. 
 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Adopt the ordinance to change the name of the east/west segment of Oak Park Road to Roane Road 
within the Oak Wood Addition. 

 12.



ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE NAME OF THE EAST/WEST SEGMENT OF OAK PARK 
ROAD TO ROANE ROAD WITHIN OAK WOOD ADDITION TO THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA. 

WHEREAS, the plat for the Oak Wood Addition to the City of Bartlesville, recorded in Washington 
County in 1982, dedicated right of way and established names for streets within said subdivision; naming an 
east/west and north/south segment of right of way the same name – Oak Park Road; and 

WHEREAS, the orderly naming of streets in the City of Bartlesville is essential to the public welfare 
and to the furnishing of police and fire protection to the residents of the city, and perpendicular streets of the 
same name are in conflict with this purpose; and 

WHEREAS, no other existing street or right of way within the City of Bartlesville aligns with this 
east/west segment of Oak Park Road; and 

WHEREAS, this east/west segment of Oak Park Road has not yet been constructed, and to avoid 
confusion and uncertainty, it is deemed appropriate to rename said segment; and 

WHEREAS, the developer intending to construct a portion of this east/west segment has suggested 
a name in honor of a City Councilor that previously represented the area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 

Section 1. The east/west segment of Oak Park Road right of way, located within the Oak Wood 
Addition to the City of Bartlesville, is renamed to Roane Road beginning at the intersecting point with Virginia 
Avenue and continuing west along properties with the legal description of Lots 1 through 12, Block 5 and Lots 
13 through 22, Block 4, terminating at the northwest corner of Lot 13, Block 4. 

Section 2. The remaining north/south segment of Oak Park Road within the Oak Wood Addition 
and all existing segments outside of the Oak Wood Addition are unchanged. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma this 
1st day of July, 2024. 

Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor 
ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



N

V
IR

G
I N

IA
 A

V
E

N
U

E

C
A

R
O

L
 R

O
A

D

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D

L
A

H
O

M
A

 D
R

IV
E

OAK PARK ROAD

MILLER DRIVE

PALOMINO DRIVE

ACORN DRIVE

PALMETTO DRIVE

1234567891
01
11
2

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

12345678

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

1

23456

78

91
0

1
11
21
31
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

7891
01
11
21
31
4

6 5 4 3 2 1

7891
01
11
2

6 5 4 3 2 1

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

123
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

3
2

3
3

3
4

3
5

P
E
R

M
A
N

E
N

T
 O

P
E
N

 A
R

E
A

CITY LIMIT LINE

556.55' N 88°08'19" E

481.56' N 88°08'19" E

303.23

301.13'

N 88°47'00" E

N 88°47'00" E

N 88°47'00" E

N 88°47'00" E

N 88°47'00" E

1
5
' U

/ E

1
5
' U

/ E
1
5
' U

/ E

1
0
3
.1

3
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

45.13'40.00'

40.00' 15' U/E

40.00'

40.00' 45.00'

20' B/L

B
LO

C
K
 5

B
LO

C
K
 4

B
LO

C
K
 3

B
LO

C
K
 2

B
LO

C
K
 1

B
LO

C
K
 7

B
LO

C
K
 6

1
2
7
3
.1

3
'

S
 0

1
°
0
8
'4

8
" E

N
 0

1
°
1
3
'0

0
" W

N
 0

1
°
1
3
'0

0
" W

N
 0

6
°
1
8
'3

9
" W

N
 0

1
°
1
3
'0

0
" W

N
 0

1
°
1
3
'0

0
" W

N
 1

3
°
1
6
'2

6
" W

5
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

5
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

5
5
.0

0
'

5
5
.0

0
'

5
5
.0

0
'

5
5
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

4
5
.0

0
'

4
5
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

117.08'

117.02'

116.28'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

45.00'40.00'
40.00'

45.00'40.00'

40.00'

45.00'40.00'

40.00'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

45.00'40.00'

45.00'40.00'

45.00'40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

45.00'

45.00'

45.00'

45.00'

45.00'

45.00'

45.00'

45.00'

45.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

40.00'

50.00'

5
0
.0

0
'

5
6
.2

4
'

4
6
.0

2
'

7
5
.0

0
'

49.36'

40.00'

1
0
5
.4

2
'

1
0
5
.0

0
'

1
2
0
.0

0
'

72.00'

72.00'

69.00'

69.00'

69.00'

69.00'72.00'

4
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

4
0
.0

0
'

7
4
.9

8
'

4
6
.0

2
'

4
0
.9

0
'

2
0
'  B

/L

20' B/L

20' B/L

20' B/L

20' B/L

20' B/L

2
0
' B

/L

10' U/E

10' U/E

10' U/E

10' U/E

1
0
' U

/ E

337.72'

259.18'

1
8

'- 0
"

20'-0"

2
0

'-0
"

18'-0"

2
0

'-0
"

2
0

'- 0
"

2
0

'- 0
"

2
0

'- 0
"

2
0

'- 0
"

2
0

'- 0
"

2
0

'- 0
"

2
0

'- 0
"

2
0

'- 0
"

20'-0"

20'-0"

N
O
T IN

 S
C
O
P
E

D
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

 P
O

N
D

R
E
C

R
E
A
T
IO

N
 A

R
E
A

4 1

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
4-BED

1,609 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF
3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF
4-BED

1,609 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF
4-BED

1,609 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF
4-BED

1,609 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF

4-BED

1,609 SF
4-BED

1,609 SF

4
-B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F
4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F
4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F

4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F
4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F
4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F
4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F
4
- B

E
D

1
, 6

0
9
 S

F

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF 3-BED

1,439 SF

3
-B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

18'-0"

18'-0"

18'-0"

1
8

'-0
"

1
8

'- 0
"

3-BED

1,383 

SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F
3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F
3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3-BED

1,439 SF

3
-B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F
3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

3
- B

E
D

1
, 4

3
9
 S

F

L
E

A
S

IN
G

 

O
F

F
IC

E

1
,5

0
0
 S

F

3
-B

E
D

1
,4

2
8
 

S
F

THIS PORTION OF OAK PARK ROAD IS NOT IN SCOPE

H
A
N

S
 R

. T
H

O
M

A
S
, A

R
C
H

IT
E
C
T

O
K
 6

7
9
5

R
E
V
IS

IO
N

S

D
A
T
E
:

S
H

E
E
T
 N

O
.

©
 C

O
P
Y
R

IG
H

T
 2

0
2
1
, H

A
N

S
 T

H
O

M
A
S
 A

N
D

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S
, L

L
C
.

HANS THOMAS & 

ASSOCIATES

ARCHITECTURAL SOLUTIONS

4741 CENTRAL STREET #1355

KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

P 816.686.2242

ARCADIAN ADDITION0
2
.1

2
.2

4

A
0
0
1 BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA

S
I
T

E

O
V

E
R

V
I
E

W

1
" =

 5
0
'-0

"
1

S
IT

E
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

N
O

.
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

D
a

te

6
-2

R
E

P
L

A
C

E
 3

-B
E

D
 R

H
 S

W
IN

G
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 W

IT
H

 3
-B

E
D

 L
H

 U
N

IT
 B

L
O

C
K

 1
, L

O
T

 9
, B

L
O

C
K

 2
, L

O
T

S
 1

 &
 1

5
, B

L
O

C
K

 3
, L

O
T

S
 1

, &
 1

5
, B

L
O

C
K

 4
, L

O
T

 1
0
2
.0

6
.2

4

6
-3

R
E

P
L

A
C

E
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

 O
N

 B
L

O
C

K
 1

, L
O

T
 2

2
 W

IT
H

 3
-B

E
D

 1
,3

8
3
 S

F
 R

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

0
2
.0

6
.2

4

6
-4

R
E

P
L

A
C

E
 1

,3
8
3
 S

F
 R

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

 W
IT

H
 1

,4
3
9
 S

F
 R

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

 B
L

O
C

K
 2

, L
O

T
S

 8
 &

 2
0
, B

L
O

C
K

 3
, L

O
T

S
 1

0
 &

 1
8
, B

L
O

C
K

 4
, L

O
T

S
 6

 &
 1

0
, B

L
O

C
K

 6
,

L
O

T
S

 2
, 1

0
, &

 1
6
, A

N
D

 B
L

O
C

K
 7

, L
O

T
 2

1

0
2
.0

6
.2

4

6
-5

R
E

P
L

A
C

E
 3

-B
E

D
 L

H
 S

W
IN

G
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 W

IT
H

 3
-B

E
D

 R
H

 U
N

IT
 B

L
O

C
K

 2
, L

O
T

S
 1

4
, &

 2
8
, B

L
O

C
K

 3
, L

O
T

S
 1

4
, &

 2
8

0
2
.0

6
.2

4

6
-6

R
E

P
L

A
C

E
 1

,3
8
3
 S

F
 L

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

 W
IT

H
 1

,4
3
9
 L

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

 B
L

O
C

K
 2

, L
O

T
 2

1
, B

L
O

C
K

 3
, L

O
T

S
 1

1
 &

 1
9
, B

L
O

C
K

 4
, L

O
T

S
 7

 &
 1

1
, B

L
O

C
K

 6
, L

O
T

S
 3

, 1
1
, &

1
7
, A

N
D

 B
L

O
C

K
 7

, L
O

T
 2

2

0
2
.0

6
.2

4

6
-7

R
E

P
L

A
C

E
 3

-B
E

D
 R

H
 S

W
IN

G
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 W

IT
H

 3
-B

E
D

 L
H

 1
,4

2
8
 S

F
 B

L
O

C
K

 6
, L

O
T

 1
0
2
.0

6
.2

4

6
-8

A
D

D
 L

E
A

S
IN

G
 O

F
F

IC
E

 T
O

 B
L

O
C

K
 7

, L
O

T
S

 3
2
 &

 3
3

0
2
.0

6
.2

4

6
-1

0
R

E
L

O
C

A
T

E
 D

E
T

E
N

T
IO

N
 P

O
N

D
 T

O
 M

A
T

C
H

 C
IV

IL
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

, A
D

D
 P

A
T

H
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 P

O
N

D
0
2
.0

6
.2

4

7
-1

E
X

T
E

N
D

 S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 T

O
 B

L
O

C
K

 4
, L

O
T

 1
3
 T

O
 M

A
T

C
H

 C
IV

IL
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

0
3
.1

1
.2

4

8
-1

E
X

T
E

N
D

 S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 F

R
O

M
 B

L
O

C
K

 7
, L

O
T

 2
0
 T

O
 B

L
O

C
K

 5
, L

O
T

 1
2
 P

E
R

 T
H

E
 C

IT
Y

 O
F

 B
A

R
T

L
E

S
V

IL
L

E
0
3
.2

8
.2

4

HThomas
03282024 OK HT



lmsnyder
Cloud

lmsnyder
Text Box
SEGMENT TO BE RENAMED



 13.















14 & 15





























































































































 
 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
AUTHORITIES, BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES AND CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

   
 

          

          STAFF             COUNCIL REP. 

1. Adams Municipal Golf Course Operating Committee- 6 members………… Benedict (A)             Dorsey (VM) 
 1st Tues. of every other month at 6:00 p.m. in the Adams Clubhouse 

2. Adult Center Trust Authority – 7 members……………………………………………  Bailey (A) 
 Meetings as needed at the 55+ Activity Center 

 i. 55+ Activity Center Board of Director- 10 members………………….  Bailey (A) 
  3rd Thursday of each month at 9 a.m. at the Activity Center 

3. Ambulance Commission – 4 members………………………………………………….. Call & Ickleberry (A) 
 Meetings as needed – City Hall 

4. Bartlesville Convention & Visitors Bureau (Visitors, Inc.)- 12 members                   Dorsey & Roszel (A) 
 3rd Tuesday each month at noon at the Depot.   

5. Bartlesville Development Authority – 5 members………………………………….                   Copeland & Curd (A) 
 4th Wed. of each month at 8 a.m. at the Depot, Silas Conference Room 

6. Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority – 6 members…………………….. Bailey (A)            Roszel (VM) 
 4th Wed. of each month at 3:30 in Council Chambers at City Hall 

7. Bartlesville Film Authority – 5 members……………………………………………….. Sanders (A)             Curd (VM) 
 Meetings as needed / 2nd Monday of the month 1:30 p.m.   

8. Board of Adjustment – 5 members……………………………………………………….. Curtis & Collins(A) 
 4th Thursday of each month at 5 p.m. in Council Chambers at City Hall 

9. City Council-5 members………………………………………………………………………… Bailey  (A)         Full Council (VM) 
 1st Monday of each month at 7 p.m. in Council Chambers at City Hall 

 i.  Bartlesville Education Authority-Council Members……………………………. Bailey (A)               Full Council (VM) 

 ii.  Bartlesville Municipal Authority – Council Members…………………………. Bailey (A)        Full Council (VM) 

 iii.  City/County Emergency Management Council – 8 members…………. Bailey (A)         Full Council (VM) 
       i., ii., and iii. Meet as needed  

10. City Planning Commission –7 members………………………….…………………….    Curtis (A)              Roane  (VM) 
 4th Tuesday of each month at 5:30 p.m. in Council Chambers at City Hall 

11. Community Center Trust Authority – 10 members…………………………………. Bailey (A)             Copeland (VM) 
 Meet once a quarter at 8 a.m. at the Community Center (CCTA has subcommittees that meet as needed) 

12. Construction and Fire Code Appeals Board – 5 members……………………… Yankovich & Call (A) 
 Meet as needed. 

13. Downtown Landscape Task Force – 8 members…………………………………….Siemers & Robinson (VM)  Curd & Roane (VM) 
 Meet as needed 

14. Employee Advisory Committee-12 members……………………………………….. Bailey (A) 
 2nd Wed. of each month at 9 a.m. in the 2nd fl. Conf. Room at City Hall 

A-Advisor/Ex Officio 
VM-Voting Member 

Agenda Item 16. 



15. History Museum Trust Authority – 9 members……………………………………… McGill (A)               Roane (VM) 
 Meet once a quarter Jan. April, July and Oct on 4th Wed. at 9:15 a.m.  
 in the Museum Conference Room 5th floor City Hall 

16. Keep Bartlesville Beautiful – 7 members……………………………………………….. Curtis (VM)   Roane (VM) 
 Meet monthly 4th Tuesday at noon 

17. Library Board – 8 members…………………………………………………………………… McGill (A) 
 2nd Tuesday Bi-Monthly at 4:30 p.m. in the Library. 

18. Library Trust Authority – 8 members…………………………………………………….. McGill (A)               Roszel (VM) 
 Meet twice a year and as needed. 

19. Park Board - 6 members………………….…………………..…………….…………………   Curtis, Henry, Robinson (A)         Curd (VM) 
 3rd Thursday of each month at 12:00 p.m. in 1st fl. Conf. Room 

i. Tree Sub-Committee of the Park Board – 5 members………………. Curtis & Robinson (A)  
2nd Thursday of each month, excluding June, July and August, at 12 p.m. at City Hall 

20. Sewer System Improvements Oversight Committee – 7 members……..… Bailey, Lauritsen (A)                  Dorsey (VM) 
 2nd Monday of each month at 4 p.m. in 1st fl. Conf. Room at City Hall. 

21. Street and Traffic Committee – 7 members………………..…………………………   Call, Henry, Ickleberry (A)        Roszel (A) 
 2nd Thursday of each month at noon in 1st fl. Conf. Room  

22. Tax Incentive District Review committee – 9 members………………………….   Curtis (A)                               Roane  (VM) 
 Meet as needed. 

23. Tower Green Design Committee – 7 members………………………………………    Curtis(A)                            Roane & Curd (V) 
 Meet as Needed 

24. Transportation Committee – 5 members………………………  Curtis(A) Siemers (A) Muninger (A)      Roane & Dorsey (VM) 
 Meet as Needed 

25. Water Resources Committee – 17 members ………………………………Bailey (VM) & Lauritsen (A)   Copeland & Roane (VM) 
 Meet as needed.                     

26. White Rose Cemetery Board – 9 members……………………………………………. Henry (A) 
Meetings are held in odd months, 4th Thursday at 9:15 a.m. 
 at the White Rose Cemetery Office 

 

June 2024 

 


	City Council Agenda July 1, 2024
	Agenda Item 4. Citizens Academy 2024 Class I Presentation
	Agenda Item 6.a.i. City Council Minutes June 3, 2024
	Agenda Item 6.b.i. CCTA Appointment Caroline Casselberry
	Agenda Item 6.c.i. Amended Ordinance and Joinder Agreement for Sanders CMO Plan
	Agenda Item 6.d.i. Resoluton for filing of Supplement #31
	Agenda Item 6.e.i. Service Agreement between City-BPD and TCT
	Agenda Item 6.e.ii. Lease Agreement between City-BPD and TCT
	Agenda Item 6.e.iii. Service Agreement between BPD and Axon Enterprise Inc.
	Agenda Item 6.e.iv. Janitorial Agreement between City and Simply Green Clean LLC
	Agenda Item 6.e.v. Staff report_Contract Award_Canady Construction
	Agenda Item 6.e.vi. Staff report_Asset Management Software Contract_Brightly
	Sourcewell - Brightly Contract 090320 (1).pdf
	Dude Solutions Contract 090320
	Dude Solutions 090320-Amendment 1


	Agenda Item 6.e.vii. Staff report for PS Amndmnt 1 with Murray on CEC testing_ WWTP Expansion
	Staff report for PS Amndmnt 1 with Murray on CEC testing_ WWTP Expansion
	Murray GeoConsulting Amendment to Contract

	AGenda Item 6.e.viii. Staff report_Contract Award_B-Town Construction_Hillcrest_Nebraska
	Staff report_Contract Award_B-Town Construction_Hillcrest_Nebraska
	Short Form Contract_Hillcrest_Nebraska
	Quote # m214 FLOW METERS_Nebraska_Hillcrest
	BTOWN BIDDING AFFIDAVITS

	Agenda Item 6.e.ix. Hangar Agreement with Airport and Wings of Change Ministries
	Agenda Item 6.e.x. Staff report amendment 3_Guy Eng
	1425 Bartlesville Br 5,6,9 Supplement 3.pdf
	Stantec Scope for Tuxedo Blvd survey  20240605.pdf
	Project Understanding
	Scope of Services
	Compensation





	Agenda Item 6.e.xi. MOU for FOP Stipend Payment Change
	Agenda Item 6.e.xii. MOU for FOP for Employee Perf and Recog Program
	Agenda Item 6.e.xiii. Agreement with BPD and Wilson
	Agenda Item 6.e.xiv. Employnment Agreement between the City and Joson Dochney-Golf Course Interium Mgr
	Agenda Item 6.e.xv. Video permission-Aaron Ray Vaughan
	Agenda Item 6.f.i. Bartlesville NEXT Report - Jun 2024
	June 24

	Agenda Item 6.g.i. May 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	May 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P11 May 2024 Financials
	P11 May 2024 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 6.h.i. and ii. Advertisment - Water Chemicals_Water Line Materials
	Agenda Item 7. Bid Review Recommendation_W  WW Mat 6-26-24
	20240626133147
	Bid Review Recommendation_W & WW Mat 6-26-24
	Bid Review Recommendation_W & WW Mat 6-25-24
	MATERIALS BID TABULATION 2024-2025-001
	Section A
	Section B
	Section C
	Section D
	Section E
	Section F




	Agenda Item 8. Bid Review Recommendation_Water Treat Chem 6-26-24
	20240626133200
	Bid Review Recommendation_Water Treat Chem 6-26-24
	Bid Review Recommendation_Water Treat Chem 6-25-24
	Bid Tabulation Water Treatment Chemicals 24-25_for award
	Sheet2




	Agenda Item 9. Staff report and Resolution for Calling City Council Election
	Agenda Item 10. Service Agreement between City-Golf Course and JJ Keegan for Mgmt Model
	Agenda Item 11. Golf Cart Ordinance
	ADPB117.tmp
	APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 6TH DAY OF MAY 2024.


	Agenda Item 12. Final Council Memo and Attachments Arcadian Oak Park Rd Rename
	RENAME OAK PARK RD COUNCIL MEMO.pdf
	Draft Ordinance - Oak Park Road Name Change.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. __________
	Dale Copeland, Mayor
	ATTEST:
	__________________________
	Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk

	Arcadian - Site Overview REV-8 NO CLOUDS HT.pdf
	Exhibit of Segment to be Renamed.pdf

	Agenda Item 13. Proposed Ordinance amending Appendix D incl waiver of fees by CM
	Agenda Item 14. and 15. Addendum and Amendment #1 to Buffalo Roam Development Agreement
	Agenda Item 16. Staff and Council Committee Liaison List-CURRENT



